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Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 29th June, 2018 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 14th June, 2018.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

	 Gangani Liyanage,
	 Government Printer (Acting).

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08,
01st January, 2018.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Note.–   	Nation Building Tax (Amendment) Bll was published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka of 25th May, 2018.
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Appointments, &c., by the President
MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/WDL57.

SRI  LANKA   army—volunteer Force

Rescinding of an order made by His Excellency 
the President

The Order made by His Excellency the President 
withdrawing the commission granted to the under mentioned 
Officer of the Volunteer Force of the Sri Lanka Army 
published in the Gazette Number 1,991 dated 28th October, 
2016 is hereby rescineded :-

Temporary Captain   Kuttikanda Gamaethiralalage 
Titus , SLNG   (O/5341);

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th March, 2018.

06-338/1

No. 476 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/WDL57.

SRI  LANKA   army—Volunteer Force

Retirement from the Volunteer Force of the Sri 
Lanka Army approved by His Excellency the 

President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Volunteer Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 01st May, 2011 :-

Lieutenant  Kuttikanda Gamaethiralalage Titus, 
SLNG  (O/5341);

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th March, 2018.

06-338/2

No. 477 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RET/197 (1G).

SRI  LANKA   air  force

Retirement Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 08th July, 2018 :-

Air Vice Marshal  Manikku Wadu Thilan Indrajith De 
Silva, (01533) - Operation Air;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
09th April, 2018.

06-368

No. 478 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/EOS/17/2017.

SRI  LANKA   air force 

Extension of Service Approved by His Excellency 
the President

The undermentioned Officer is granted an extension of 06 
months service in the rank of Air Commodore with effect 
from 01st August, 2018 :-

Air Commodore   Don John Clyde Weerakoon,  (01457) 
-  Administrative Regiment;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-367
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No. 479 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/04.

SRI  LANKA   air  force

Promotion Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned officer is promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Air Commodore with effect from the date stated 
against his name:-

Temporary Air Commodore  Indika Kamal Weeraratne, 
(01611) AD/REGT  05.01.2018.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-370

No. 480 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/03.

SRI  LANKA   air force 

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Substantive Group Captain  with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names :-

Temporary Group Captain Athukoralalage Harshadewa 
Priyadarshi Padmakumara Kariyapperuma, (01974)  
Medical  15.05.2018 ;

Temporary Group Captain   Maddumage Don Anthony 
Gihan Seneviratne, (01928)  TECH/ENG  01.06.2018.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.
06-511

No. 481 of 2018

D/AF/10/2.

SRI  LANKA   air force 

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officer is promoted to the rank of 
Temporary Wing Commander  with effect from the dates 
stated against his name :-

Squadron Leader   Tupphai Baduge Chaminda De Silva, 
(01846)  Admin  01.06.2009;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence, Public 
	 Security, Law & Order.

Colombo,
23rd July, 2009.

06-333/3

No. 482 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/2T.

SRI  LANKA   air force 

Promotion Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officer is promoted to the rank of 
Temporary Wing Commander with effect from the date 
stated against his name :-

Substantive Squadron Leader  Lalith Sapumal 
Jayaweera,  (02324) LOG  13.03.2018;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
02nd February, 2018.

06-335
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No. 483 of 2018

D/AF/10/2.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Wing Commander with effect  from the dates 
stated against their names:-

Temporary Wing Commander  Priyal Chandana 
Kamalahewa, (01913)  Dental  01.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Neeluka Dayani 
Bernadette Abeysekara, (01876)  Medical  01.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Obedawattage Aruna 
Ninian Suharshi Fernando, (01735)  Ops/Air  01.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Dhammika Tissa Kumara 
Weligodapola, (01763)  GD/P  01.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Sudusuriya 
Mudiyanselage Senarath Palinda Koswatta, (01737)  Eq  
02.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Singankutti Arachchige 
Dayal Wijeratne, (01765)  GD/P  02.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Kodikarage Don 
Innocent Damascene Shamindra Saparamadu, (01775)  
Ops/Air  02.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Lesturege Roshan 
Janaka De Silva, (01940)  AFC   02.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Rajeewa Sampath 
Wickramartne, (01836)  GD/P  03.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Yasanga Saranath 
Sooriyaarachchi, (01771)  Eq  03.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Marasinghe Ruchira 
Kalhara Samarasinghe, (01829)  AFC   03.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Priyantha Bamunusinghe 
Liyanage, (01823)  Eq  04.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Neranjana Lalaka 
Sanjeewa Wijesekera, (01838)  GD/P  04.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander  Paskuwalge Don Ranil 
Wickramasinghe, (01768)  GD/P  06.01.2009.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP, RSP, psc
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence, Public 
	 Security, Law and Order.

Colombo,
20th March, 2018.

06-333/1

No. 484 of 2018

D/AF/10/2.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Wing Commander with effect  from the dates 
stated against their names:-

Temporary Wing Commander  Sujee Rasika Dumindra 
Bellanage, (01753)  AFC  04.01.2009;

Temporary Wing Commander Channa Priyankara 
Gunatilaka, (01639)  Eq  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Wasala Mudiyanselage 
Ajith Banda Wewegama, (01724)  Ad/Regt  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Mohamed Ayub Jabir, 
(01769)  T/Eng  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Kapuruge Sudesh 
Nishantha Perera, (01518)  Eq  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Mathota Arachchige 
Dayajeewa Arunananda Jayathilake, (01731)  E/Eng  
01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Pagoda Mudiyanselage 
Sudharma Mahinda Pagoda, (01774)  Ad/Regt  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Pitigala Kankanamge 
Don Namal Sujee Pitigala, (01805)  Admin   01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Anusha nishanthi 
hewagama, (01878)  Medical  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Chandrika Visna 
Kadawarage (01915)  Dental  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Nalaka Upul Atukorala, 
(01672)  T/Eng   01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Kankanamge Chandana 
Geethapriya, (01817)  AFC  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Shiraz Jaldeen, (01780)  
Ad/Regt  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Vasu Bandu Edirisinghe, 
(01848)  GD/P  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Lalith Rukman 
Jayaweera, (01877)  Medical  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Makawitage Jude Ronie 
Perera, (01751)  E/Eng  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Kahada Ratnayakage 
Sudam Hemantha, (01818)  Admin  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Danstan Jayalal Kithsiri 
Lokupathirage, (01744)  T/Eng  01.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Saman Rexy Udukumbura, 
(01740)  Eq  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Kahingala Iresh Sumeda 
De Silva, (01816)  AFC  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Thushara Indunil 
Fernando, (01736)  Eq  03.01.2010;
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Temporary Wing Commander  Lasitha Harshakumara 
Sumanaweera, (01849)  GD/P  03.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Muditha Piyankara 
Ariyadasa Mahawattage, (01743)  T/Eng  02.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Balasooriya 
Arachchilage Mohan Princely Balasooriya, (01815)  Ad/
Regt  03.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Magalage Anura 
Priyantha Perera, (01782)  T/Eng  03.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Aranayake Waidyage 
Sarike Jagathwijaya Aranayake, (01851)  GD/P  04.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Idirisinghe Mudiyanselage 
Yasanth Anuraddha Bandara, (01850)  GD/P  05.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Shan Chaminda 
Wijenayake, (01786)  Ad/Regt  11.01.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Rajiv Perakumba 
Kodippily, (01728)  Ad/Regt  02.03.2009.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP, RSP, psc,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence, Public 
	 Security, Law and Order.

Colombo,
23rd February, 2010.

06-333/2

No. 485 of 2018

D/AF/10/2.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Promotion Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officer is promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Wing Commander with effect from the dates 
stated against his name :-

Temporary Wing Commander  Gamage Harsha 
Priyantha Nanayakkara, (01733)  Ad/Regt  07.12.2009;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP, RSP, psc,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence, Public 
	 Security, Law & Order.

Colombo,
27th November, 2009.

06-333/4

No. 486 of 2018

D/AF/10/2

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Wing Commander with effect from the dates 
stated against their names :-

Temporary Wing Commander Keerthi Herath 
Ekanayake, (01790)  Ad/Regt  05.05.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander  Maddumage Don 
Bandula Abeyratne, (01745)  Tech/Eng  29.05.2010;

Temporary Wing Commander Thupphai Baduge 
Chamindra de Silva, (01846)  Admin 01.06.2010.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP, RSP, psc,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence, Public 
	 Security, Law & Order.

Colombo,
10th May, 2010.

06-333/5

No. 487 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/02 .

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officers are Promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Wing Commander with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names:-

Temporary Wing Commander  Chandrasekara 
Mudiyanselage Dinusha Chandrasekara, (02143)  Admin  
01.06.2018;

Temporary Wing Commander  Vidana Gamage Prabash 
Mahanama, (02042)  GD/P  16.06.2018;
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Temporary Wing Commander  Meeviti Arachchige 
Don Chamila Iranga Gunasinghe, (02261)  TECH/ENG  
25.07.2018.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-514

No. 488 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RET/191.

SRI  LANKA   air  force

Retirement Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 25th May, 2018:-

Squadron Leader Wijesooriya Mudiyanselage Sanjeewa 
Sampath Wijesooriya, (02737) - Administrative Regiment.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-375

No. 489 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RET/198.

SRI  LANKA   air  force

Retirement Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 01st June, 2018:-

Squadron Leader Rajakaruna Abayaratna 
Herath Mudiyanselage Chandana Tilaka Bandara 
Nawagattegama, (02768) - Administrative.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
02nd May, 2018.

06-371

No. 490 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RET/192.

SRI  LANKA   air  force

Retirement Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 01st June, 2018:-

Squadron Leader Hewapedige Nishantha Janaka 
Karunadasa, (02787) - Administrative Regiment.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-376

No. 491 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RET/196.

SRI  LANKA   air  force

Retirement Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 04th August, 2018:-
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Squadron Leader Uru Liyanage Rajitha Sampath 
Gunasinghe, (02136) - Administrative Regiment;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
09th April, 2018.

06-377

No. 492 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/1T.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Temporary Squadron Leader with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names :-

Flight Lieutenant   Pathirannehelage Lahiru Pramith 
Niroshana, (03494)  AFC  18.05.2018;

Flight Lieutenant   Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 
Lakshman Gnanasiri Jayasena, (02794)  E/ENG  27.05.2018;

Flight Lieutenant   Konesalingam Vijithan, (03499)  
AFC  11.06.2018;

Flight Lieutenant   Nageswaran Sujeevan, (03500)  AFC  
11.06.2018;

Flight Lieutenant   Kuda Wedagedara Nayana Ranga 
Wijerathne, (02979)  AFC  23.06.2018.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-512

No. 493 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/PRO/01.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Promotions Approved by His Excellency the 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Squadron Leader with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names :-

Temporary Squadron Leader    Herathmudiyanselage 
Don Anuruddha Dasarath Perera, (02589)  TECH/ENG  
05.05.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader Chamila Pradeep 
Kumarasinghe, (02585)  TECH/ENG  05.05.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader   Jayaweera Mudiyanselage 
Upul Janaka Manananda, (02563)  AFC  12.07.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader   Polwaththa Walawwe 
Dammike Bandara Rathnayaka, (02607) AD/REGT  
14.07.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kankani Thanthri Charith 
Prasanna, (02618)  LOG  14.07.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader Rathwaththage Pradeep 
Wasantha Kumara, (02619)  LOG  14.07.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader Hadigallage Krishantha 
Chandana Hadigalla, (02638)  AD/AGRI  19.07.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader   Kulatilaka Attanayaka 
Mudalige Kamal Priyantha Jayasiri, (02639)  AD/AGRI  
19.07.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader Amunugama Dissanayakage 
Siddika Nimalashantha Dissanayake, (02640)  AD/AGRI  
19.07.2018;

Temporary Squadron Leader Melantha Rasanjan 
Senanayake, (02590)  TECH/ENG 05.08.2018.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-513
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No. 494 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/99.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Resignation of Commission Approved by His 
Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the undermentioned officer with effect 
from 30th April, 2018:-

Flying Officer   Don Sieman Ralalage Sashika Lochana 
Gunawardana, (03339)  -  Administrative ;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-337

No. 495 of 2018

D/AF/31/(T).

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Commissioning Approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has been pleased to approve 
the Commissioning of the undermentioned Officer Cadets 
as Pilot Officers in the Sri Lanka Air Force with effect from 
12th July, 2007and their postings to the Branches of the 
Service stated against their names with effect from the same 
date.

11437 Officer Cadet Wijesuriya Nayakage Amila 
Dhanushka Wijesuriya - Admin (02705);

11431 Officer Cadet Welgamage Don Hiran Hemajeeth 
- Equip (02706);

11441 Officer Cadet Adhikari Arachchilage Srimal 
Asantha Gunarathna  - Ops Air (02707);

11433 Officer Cadet Ilangakoon Arachchige Kasun 
Darshana Padmasiri - Equip (02708);

11417 Officer Cadet Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Upula 
Shameera Bandara - GD/P (02709);

11435 Officer Cadet Wijesundara Ranasinghe 
Muhandiram Appuhamilage Pramila Thushan Wijesundara 
- Equip (02710);

11436 Officer Cadet Rathnaweera Patabendige Thilan 
Dusanka Rathnaweera - Admin (02711);

11420 Officer Cadet Herath Mudiyanselage Tharindhu 
Kanishka Herath - GD/P (02712);

11418 Officer Cadet Malliya Waduge Nelson De Silva 
- GD/P (02713);

11432 Officer Cadet Koshan Chamara Kumarage - 
Equip (02714);

11439 Officer Cadet Udawala Hewage Ashirvada 
Harischandra De Silva - Ad/Regt (02715);

11422 Officer Cadet Sayakkara Viraj Sanjeewa 
Jayawardena - GD/P (02716);

11430 Officer Cadet Horadugoda Gamage Thasitha 
Sankalpa Wijayasiriwardane - GD/P (02717);

11425 Officer Cadet Wikum Asiri Mapatuna - GD/P 
(02718);

11434 Officer Cadet Arachchige Deemal Harshana 
Salgadu - Equip (02719);

11419 Officer Cadet Manikku Badathuruge Gihan 
Thilanga Dias - GD/P (02720);

11444 Officer Cadet Mallika Achchige Don Chamara 
Kasun Wijethunga - Ops Air (02721);

11421 Officer Cadet Nakandalage Don Isuru Dilantha 
Jayasekara - GD/P (02722);

11442 Officer Cadet Wewala Hiran Lakmal Panditha - 
Ops Air (02723);

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence, Public Security, 
	 Law & Order.

Colombo,
28th November, 2008.

06-333/6

No. 496 of 2018

D/AF/650.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Commissioning Approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has been pleased to approve 
the Commissioning of undernamed as Pilot Oficer in the Sri 
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Lanka Air Force with effect from 25th May, 2009 and his 
posting to the Branch of the Service with effect from the 
same date :-

Godahene Gedara Ranjith Lal Pathiraja, (02745)  -  
Ad/Regt;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence, Public Security, 
	 Law & Order.

Colombo,
19th August, 2009.

06-333/7

No. 497 of 2018

D/AF/31/(T).

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Commissioning Approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has been pleased to approve 
the Commissioning of undermentioned Officer Cadets as 
Pilot Officers in the Sri Lanka Air Force with effect from 
07th May, 2010 and their posting to the Branches of the 
Service with effect from the same date.

11548 Officer Cadet Bothalawa Arachchige Dilshan 
Hasanga Bandara Kithsiri - GD/P (02886);

11558 Officer Cadet Atuwagawa Gedara Buddhika 
Prabath Kumarasinghe - Logistics (02887);

11560 Officer Cadet Rajaguru Depanamage Pabasara 
Bandara Rajaguru  - Logistics (02888);

11557 Officer Cadet Maweekumbure Manthreethilaka 
Jayasiri Gamaralage Vimukthi Anupama Jayasiri - Logistics 
(02889);

11561 Officer Cadet Wijesingha Appuhamilage Janaka 
Wijesinghe - Logistics (02890);

11564 Officer Cadet Isuru Lakmal Jayathilaka- Admin 
(02891);

11579 Officer Cadet Karawe Thanthreege Amila 
Madusanka Perera - Ad/Regt (02892);

11578 Officer Cadet Chethiya Assaji Nawalahewage - 
Ad/Regt (02893);

11566 Officer Cadet Kalpa Anuranga Rajaguru - Admin 
(02894);

11551 Officer Cadet Subasinghe Arachchige Indika 
Niroshan - GD/P (02895);

11555 Officer Cadet Vishwa Lakmewan Athukorala - 
Logistics (02896);

11572 Officer Cadet Mallawa Arachchige Don Supun 
Buddhika - Ad/Regt (02897);

11556 Officer Cadet Laddasingha Sembukutti 
Arachchilage Anushka Dilshan Jayaratne - Logistics 
(02898);

11577 Officer Cadet Kimbulobbe Herath Mudiyanselage 
Chaminda Indunil - Ad/Regt (02899);

11568 Officer Cadet Kongala Hetti Arachchige 
Sameera Indunil Sandaruwan - Admin (02900);

11586 Officer Cadet Kaluwa Dewage Thilina Madusanka 
Wijesingha - Ad/Regt (02901);

11581 Officer Cadet Hindurangalage Don Kalinga 
Rashan - Ad/Regt (02902);

11553 Officer Cadet Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage 
Harinda Vishvajith Rathnayaka - GD/P (02903);

11575 Officer Cadet Idam Gamagedara Manjula Asanka 
Gamage - Ad/Regt (02904);

11565 Officer Cadet Kariyawasam Haputhrantrige Ravi 
Vijayasiri Kariyawasam - Admin (02905);

11552 Officer Cadet Kurugamage Sumedha Shenal 
Perera - GD/P (02906);

11580 Officer Cadet Kishan Jude Maddhuma Ranasinghe 
- Ad/Regt (02907);

11576 Officer Cadet Asanka Dananjaya Gunathilake - 
Ad/Regt (02908);

11543 Officer Cadet Thuse Cooray Mohotti 
Gurunnanselage Rumesh Dilshan Cooray  - GD/P (02909);

11544 Officer Cadet Bambarenda Guruge Kasun 
Eranda  - GD/P (02910);

11587 Officer Cadet Lansakara Kulathungha 
Mudiyanselage Kashyapa Bandara Alawala  - Ops Air 
(02911);

11589 Officer Cadet Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 
Prabath Thusitha Kumara Dissanayake  - Ops Air (02912);

11567 Officer Cadet Ranasinghe Arachchilage Don  
Emanga Piumal Ranasinghe  - Admin (02913);

11590 Officer Cadet Athulduwa Arachchige Don 
Sachith Hasantha Pathmasiri  - Ops Air (02914);

11585 Officer Cadet Subawickrama Mallika Vidana 
Arachchige Lasantha Viduranga  - Ad/Regt (02915);

11569 Officer Cadet Amila Indika Wanigasekara  - 
Admin (02916);

11591 Officer Cadet Ranasinghe Arachchilage Lakshika 
Lushan Ranasinghe  - Ops Air (02917);

11574 Officer Cadet Galagedarage Danushka Viraj 
Galagedara  - Ad/Regt (02918);

11584 Officer Cadet Halloluwa Kankanamge Sanjaya 
Anuradha Silva  - Ad/Regt (02919);

11573 Officer Cadet Dassanayake Mudiyanselage 
Prasad Sandaruwan Dasanayaka  - Ad/Regt (02920);

11588 Officer Cadet Kirikiththe Baththana 
Mudiyanselage Mahesh Buddika Rathnayaka Bandara  - 
Ops Air (02921);



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'06'08

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 08.06.2018
876

11582 Officer Cadet Senanayake Achchige Duminda 
Sampath Senanayake  - Ad/Regt (02922).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	G otabaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th September, 2011.

06-333/8

No. 498 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/COM/RAF.

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Commissioning Approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has been pleased to approve 
the Commissioning of undermentioned Officer Cadet as 
Pilot Officer in the Sri Lanka Air Force with effect from the 
date and in the Branch stated against his name.

11858 Officer Cadet Mukalanyaya Yasan Buddika 
Ranasinghe, E/Eng 03.08.2014.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
09th April, 2018.

06-374

No. 499 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/COM/RAF (1a).

SRI  LANKA  air  force

Commissioning Approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of undermentioned Officer Cadets as Pilot 

Officer in the Sri Lanka Air Force with effect from the dates 
stated their names.

11882 Officer Cadet Weerappulige Dinuka Chandika 
(03548) E/Eng 03.08.2014;

11893 Officer Cadet Dingiththa Hene Gedara Sameera 
Kalum Hewage (03549) E/Eng 26.04.2017;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-373

No. 500 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/103.

SRI  LANKA   Volunteer  air  force

Resignation of Commission Approved by His 
Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Volunteer Officer 
with effect from 03rd April, 2018:-

Flight Lieutenant  Ramanayake Pathirannahalage 
Sachith Akalanka Abeysekara, (V/0582) - Electronics 
Engineering Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-369
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No. 501 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/105.

SRI  LANKA Volunteer air  force

Resignation of Commission Approved by  
His Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Volunteer Officer 
with effect from 03rd April, 2018 :-

Flight Lieutenant   Wakwella Gamagei Achira Nuwan 
Chamara, (V/0583)  -  Electronics Engineering Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-336

No. 502 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/104.

SRI  LANKA Volunteer air  force

Resignation of Commission Approved by  
His Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Volunteer Officer 
with effect from 03rd April, 2018 :-

Flight Lieutenant   Weerasinghe Rubasinghege Dilan 
Govinda, (V/0584)  -  Electronics Engineering Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-334

No. 503 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/101.

SRI  LANKA Volunteer air  force

Resignation of Commission Approved by  
His Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Volunteer Officer 
with effect from 03rd April, 2018 :-

Flight Lieutenant   Kaluwa Dewage Shrimal Lakshitha 
Premalal, (V/0585)  -  Electronics Engineering Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-339

No. 504 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/100.

SRI  LANKA   volunteer air Force

Resignation of Commission approved by  
His Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Volunteer Officer 
with effect from 10th April, 2018:-

Flight Lieutenant Jayalath Mudiyanselage Uditha 
Gayan, (V/0578) - Electronics Engineering Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-372
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Government Notifications 

No. 505 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/106.

SRI  LANKA  Volunteer  air  force

Resignation of Commission Approved by His 
Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Volunteer Officer 
with effect from 20th April, 2018 :-

Flight Lieutenant Asiri Shiwantha Indatissa, (V/0577)  -  
Electronics Engineering Branch;

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-510

Notice under Section 25 & 26 of the Debt Conciliation Ordinance No. 39 of 1941

The Debt Conciliation Board wishes to make an attempt to bring about a settlement between the Creditor and the Debtor 
indicated against the application number in the Schedule hereto under the Debt Conciliation Ordinance Act, No. 39 of 1941, 
No. 5 of 1959, No. 24 of 1964, No. 41 of 1973 and No. 19 of 1978.

Therefore in terms of Section 25 (1) and 26 (1) of the Ordinance the relevant Creditors are hereby required to furnish to 
the Board before the date they are required to appear before it the particulars of debt due to them from the under mentioned 
debtors.

	 Roshani Hettige,
	 Secretary (Acting),
	 Debt Conciliation Board Department.

Debt Conciliation Board Department,
No. 35A, Dr. N. M. Perera Mawatha, 
Colombo 08.
May, 2018.

	 Application	 Name & Address of Debtor	 Name & Address of Creditor
	 No.

	 (01)	 Mrs. Arandara Manage Sudarma Sremathi	 Mrs. Herath Mudiyanselage Dayawathi,
	 44464		  Wijayalakshmi,		  No. 05, New Puththalam Road,
			   No. 198, 5 Ela,		  Pothanegama.
			   Shawasthipura.

	 (02)	 Mrs. Arandara Manage Sudarma Sremathi	 Mrs. Herath Mudiyanselage Dayawathi,
	 44463		  Wijayalakshmi,		  No. 05, New Puththalam Road,
			   No. 198, 5 Ela, Shawasthipura.		  Pothanegama.

	 (03)	 Mrs. Jagoda Arachchige Dona Chandima	 Mrs. Jagoda Arachchige Dona
	 44086		J  anaki Dasanayaka,		  Nimalika Nandani Dasanayaka,
			   No. 104/5, Seruwila Waththa,		  No. 88/4, Minuwangoda Road,		
			   Morenna, Yakkala.		  Manammana, Udugampala.

				    Mrs. Dona Sobadini Wasakkara,
					     No. 35/4, Haragama,
					     Gurudeniya.
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	 (04)	 Mrs. Hanwellage Merian John Meril	 Mr. Gagala Walauwe Ravindra
	 42938		  Premathilaka,		  Kumara Wilfrad Aluwihare,
			   “Otiliakot”, Bulugahamulla,		  No. 14A, Sri Saranakara Mawatha,
			   Madurawala,		  Aluwihare, Mathale.
			   Kaikawala.

		  Mr. Hanwellage John Epimarkas,
			   Alexsender Perera,
			   “Otiliakot”, Bulugahamulla,
			   Madurawala, Kaikawala.

	 (05)	 Mrs. Egodawaththa Arachchige Piyasili,	 Mr. Rajapaksha Arachchige Lalith
	 43534		  No. 1/195, Sama Janapadaya,		I  ndika Rajapaksha,
			   Lunuwila.		  No. 682 B,
					     Pramodaya, Batadolawaththa,
					H     eiyanthuduwa,

	 (06)	 Mr. Undithkunda Arachchige Upali	 Mr. Don Senaka Parakum
	 43953		  Priyantha,		  DSP Kariyapperuma Finance &
			   561/1, Henihaththa,		I  nvestment (Pvt) Ltd,
			   Biyagama.		  666/10, Yatihena,
					     Waduwegama, Malwana.

		  Mr. Undithkunda Arachchige Danushka
			   Madusanka,
			   561/1, Henihaththa, Biyagama.

	 (07)	 Mr. Weerakonda Baduge Elfrade Basil	 Mrs. Kiththingal Mala Ramani de Soisa,
	 43850		F  ernando,		  No. 428, Galle Road, Mahagoda,
			   No. 1/26, Bandarawaththa,		  Beruwala.
			   Beruwala.

	 (08)	 Mrs. Asikimuththu Lechchami,	 Mr. Hewarallalage Abeysinghe,
	 44631		  No. 220/4, Pahala Garagoda,		  Pellellegama,
			Y   atiyanthota		H  akbellawaka,
					Y     atiyanthota

	 (09)	 Mrs. Gayani Walgampola,	 Lanka Credit & Buisiness Ltd.,
	 44610		  43/D/1, 3rd Lane, Galwarusawa Road,		  572/11, Hiribura Cross Road,
			   Korathota, Kaduwela.		  Karapitiya, Galle.

		  Mr. Kalinga Ravindra de Silva,
			   43/D/1, 3rd Lane, Galwarusawa Road,
			   Korathota, Kaduwela.

	 (10)	 Mr. Galketi Dewage  Dilshade Gamlath	 Sarwodaya Economic Enterprises
	 44627		  Karunarathna,		  Development Service (Garant) Ltd,
			   No. 363C, Midiland Waththa,		  Seeds (Garant) Ltd., Arthdarma 
			   Nilpanagoda, Wegowwa.		  Kendraya, No. 45, Rawathawaththa 
					     Road, Moratuwa.

	 (11)	 Mr. Rasuneshwaram Rajmani,	 Mr. Ranathunga Arachchige Dushantha	
	 44626		  No. 129/11, Kadawatha Road,		  Gotabaya,
			   Nedimala, Dehiwala.		  Wanshanatha Bandara, No. 36,
					     Pepiliyana Road, Nedimala,
					     Dehiwala.

	 Application	 Name & Address of Debtor	 Name & Address of Creditor
	 No.
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	 (12)	 Mrs. Siyabalapiti Kankanamalage 	 Mr. Dehiwala Liyanage Piyathissa,
	 43790		  Nandawathi,		  No. 2/8, Uduthuththiripitiya,
			   No. 42/1, Pilikuththuwa, Buthpitiya		  Warapalana.

		  Mr. Withana Kankanamalage Harsha Deshan	
			   Nandawathi,		
			   No. 42/1, Pilikuththuwa, Buthpitiya.

06-450

	 Application	 Name & Address of Debtor	 Name & Address of Creditor
	 No.

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/38/2018/msgq/ie.

Registrar  General’s  department

Notice  under  the  Land  Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	I  hereby give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
Column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

	 02.	T he provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands, Homagama, 08.06.2018 to 22.06.2018 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all 
working days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 29.06.2018. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

			 
	 Ranjith Dayananda,  
	 Senior Deputy Registrar General,
	 for Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
	 Folios of the Land Registers
	
Folio No. 29 of Volume 195 	 All that allotment of land marked	 01.	 Deed of Gift No. 8070 written 
of Division G of the Land Registry,		  Lot A depicted in Plan No. 401 		  and attested by D. P. Ranasinghe,
Homagama in Colombo District.		  dated 20.03.1928 made by 		  Notary Public on 05.11.1947.
			   M. D. A. Gunathilaka, Licensed 		
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			   Surveyor of the land called  	 02.	 Deed of Transfer No. 3414 written
	  			  ‘Landu Bima alias Horagaslanda” 		  and attested by D. P. Senarathne,
			   situated at Hokandara in Palle		  Notary Public on 30.12.1960.
			   Pattu Hewagam Korale in the 		
			   District of Colombo, Western  	 03.	 Deed of Transfer No. 3559 written
			   Province and bounded on the,	  	and attested by D. P. Senarathne,
							      Notary Public on 12.08.1961.
	 North by : 	 Horagaslanda of V. Juwanis
		  Perera and Ranketharin Watta
		  of R. E. S. de Soysa;		
	 East by :	 Lot C allotted to V. Jhone 
		  Perera;	
	 S. East by :	 Lot B allotted to V. Selesthina 	
		  hamy;		
	 S. West by :	 Cart Road;				  
	 Extent :	 01A., 03R., 35.83P.

06-519

Reference : ED/05/69/01/01/105.

Order made under the Section 10 of the Assisted Schools and Training 
Colleges (Supplementary Provisions) Act, No. 08 of 1961

Ga/Galupiyadda Methodist Sinhala Mixed School

	I, Akila Viraj Kariyawasam, Minister of Education, functioning in terms of the Powers vested on me under Section 10 of the 
Assisted Schools and Training Colleges (Supplementary Provisions) Act, No. 08 of 1961, do hereby cancel with effect from 
10th of May, 2018 up to the extent that it is applicable only to the land area of 35 perches described in the Transfer Order 
No. 610 published in the Gazette (Extra ordinary) of the Government of Sri Lanka No. 12, 876 dated 12.01.1962.

	 Akila Viraj Kariyawasam,
	 Minister of Education.

“Isurupaya”,
Pelawatte,
Battaramulla,
On 10th of May, 2018.

06-527

 
pilgrimages ordinance (Chapter the Pilgrimages - 175) Esala Festival of 

Ruhunu Katharagama Maha devale - 2018

	It is hereby notified for information of the general public that the above festival will commence on the 13th July, 2018 and  
terminate on 28th July, 2018.

The General public are informed that the regulations published in the following Gazette notifications, in terms of 
the provisions of the Pilgrimages Ordinance, shall be in force within the duration of the festival.

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
	 Folios of the Land Registers
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Government Gazette No. 9859 of 30.04.1948
Government Gazette No. 10000 of 22.07.1949
Government Gazette No. 11255 of 07.02.1958
Government Gazette No. 12508 of 07.07.1961
Government Gazette No. 12947 of 02.03.1962

	 D. S. Pathmakulasooriya,
	 Monaragala District Secretary/
	 Government Agent and 
	 Officer in charge
	 Kataragama Esala Festival 
	 Work Force.

The District Secretariat,
Moneragala.
11th May, 2018.

06-595/1

Esala    Festival   of   Ruhunu      
Katharagama   Maha  Devale —2018

Attention to Regulations relating to pilgrimages 
published in Gazette No. 9859 dated 30.04.1948, No. 10000 
dated 22.07.1949, No. 11255 dated 07.02.1958, No. 12508 
dated 07.07.1961 , No. 12947 dated 02.03.1962. I hereby 
notify  the  following particulars relating to those regulations.

	 01.	 Camp Area : 
		  “Camp area” means (a) the area within  a radius 

of a  1.6 km from the ford of the  Manik Ganga at 
Kataragama and (b) the area within a radius of 0.4 km 
from the Pulleyar Kovil at Sella Katharagama. 

	 02.	 Construction of Buildings : 
		  No Person Shall construct any building or  boutique 

whether permanent or temporary within the camp area 
during the period  of 13th  July, 2018 to 28th July, 2018  
without a written permission obtained from any other  
authorized officer. 

	 03.	 Beggars : 
		  No Person shall solicit alms within the camp area 

except in the  beggar hut constructed  near the second 
bridge over the Menik Ganga or within  a distance of 
four  meters from there and  no person shall distributes 
any alms to beggars within the camp area except at the  
aforesaid places. 

	 04.	 Bathing and washing : 
		  No person shall bath or wash cloths or animals  

within  the area of 4.8 km upward  the manik Ganga 
extending from  the place of pumping water through 
the Katharagama Water Supply Scheme. 

	 05.	 Vehicles : 

	 5.1	 No person shall enter any motor vehicle, bicycle 
bullock cart or any other  vehicle to the sacred area 
(Eastern part of Menik Ganga) without a permit 
issued by me or any other  authorized officer. 

	 5.2	 No Person shall park any vehicle  within the camp 
area except within the areas reserve for parking 
vehicles in the  new town. 

	 06.	 Barber Saloons : 
		  No Person shall establish any barber saloon within the 

camp area except the places reserved  for the  purpose.
 
	 07.	 Kavadi Kada : 
		  No person shall establish  any Kavadi Kada  without a 

permit  issued by me or any other  authorized officer. 

	 08.	 Marketing : 

	 8.1	H awkers are not allowed to sell anything within the 
scared area pilgrims rest area bus  stand and  on or 
near foot bridges No. 01 and  No. 02. 

	 8.2 	No person  shall sell “ Thinnoru, lce – Cream, 
Pooja Bhanda  Pooja trays, Food items or any other  
commodities outside the  areas reserved for  that  
purpose. 

	 8.3	 No person shall establish  or maintain any  sale 
outlet within the  sacred area except selling  of 
flowers within  the sheds already constructed on 
either sides  of the  road  leading to Kirivehera. 

	 8.4 	Every building and  every  boutique shall have  a 
dustbin  and all refuse should  be deposited therein. 

	 8.5	 All processed foods  exposed for  sale should  be 
kept in boxes with  covers so as to protect them 
from flies. 

	D . S. Pathmakulasooriya, 
	 Moneragala District Secretary/
	 Government Agent and, Officer in 
	 charge Kataragama 
	 Esala Festival Work Force.

The District Secretariat, 
Moneragala. 
11th May, 2018.   

06-595/2
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2016  Restated 

2016 2015 
 ASSETS  Note  Rs.  Rs. 

 Current Assets 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents 2          74,631,205              76,295,157 
 Receivables 3          10,107,189                2,420,856 
 Loans & Advances to Staff 4          16,979,412              16,626,260 
 Insurance Receivable            2,650,000                           -   
 Inventories / Stocks 5          15,864,779              15,518,407 
 Disposal of old stocks                54,032                   471,590 
 Other Advances 6          40,837,394                2,959,822 

       161,124,012            114,292,091 

 Non Current Assets 
 Loans & Advances to Staff 4          50,958,242              47,292,032 
 Deposits 7          57,937,588              48,558,134 
 Livestock 8            1,587,060                1,507,065 
 Knowledge Enhancement 9            8,870,233                2,330,454 
 Curriculum Revision 10            1,490,893                1,769,948 
 Intangible Assets (Net) 11          10,661,714                           -   
 Work In Progress 12          57,074,402                8,770,006 
 Property, Plant & Equipment   (Net) 13     2,102,556,299          2,138,270,176 

    2,291,136,432          2,248,497,815 

 TOTAL ASSETS     2,452,260,444          2,362,789,908 

 LIABILITIES 

 Current Liabilities 
 Accrued  Expenses 14          76,089,918              66,600,459 
 Payables 15          73,305,475              74,338,071 
 Refundable  Deposits and  Funds 16          72,285,924              50,403,438 
 Provisions for Gratuity 17            2,549,845                2,481,693 
 BOC Leaser Liability 18            6,990,010                6,976,250 

       231,221,172            200,799,911 

 Non Current Liabilities 
 Provisions for Gratuity 17        130,985,437            106,781,357 
 BOC Leaser Liability 18          11,886,883              17,995,628 

       142,872,319            124,776,985 

Revenue & Expenditure Returns 
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 Total Liabilities        374,093,491            325,576,896 

 TOTAL  NET  ASSETS     2,078,166,953          2,037,213,013 

 NET ASSETS /EQUITY 

 Capital Grant 19     2,196,294,678          2,177,645,959 
 Other   Reserves 20          58,761,861              58,761,861 
 Accumulated  surpluses/(deficits) 21       (229,983,808)           (262,508,156)
 Restricted Funds 22          33,840,026              41,834,254 
 Donations          19,254,197              21,479,095 
 TOTAL  NET  ASSETS/EQUITY     2,078,166,953          2,037,213,013 

These financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the University Act No. 16 of 1978 and other 
statutory provisions. 

K. A. R. S. Jayakody,
Bursar

The Council of the university is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements signed for 
and on behalf of the Council. 

		  Restated
		  2016	 2015
	 Note	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Prof. Chandana P. Udawatte, M. F. H. Careem, Mr. N. S. M. P. Ranjith,
Vice Chancellor. Registrar. Member of the Council.

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 9 to 19 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

2017.02.28

Statement of Finance Performance for the Year Ended 31st December, 2016

Restated
2016 2015

REVENUE Note Rs. Rs.

Recurrent Grant       1,018,900,000        891,508,158 
Bursary and Mahapola Grants 23          109,496,600          84,785,850 
Self Finance Programme Income 24           34,291,545          42,611,094 
Other  Income 25           32,023,357          20,905,324 
Differed Income 26          258,028,279        220,202,868 

Total  Revenue       1,452,739,781     1,260,013,294 
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OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Emoluments 27-A          763,189,206        708,455,851 
Travelling & Subsistence 27-B             5,475,750            2,062,833 
Supplies & Consumables 27-C           51,793,196          51,096,797 
Maintenance Expenses 27-D           18,036,147          14,017,591 
Contractual Services 27-E          132,521,905        129,455,973 
Other Recurrent Expenses 27-F           48,766,095          34,724,215 
Self Finance Programme Expenses 27-G           22,661,106          24,907,182 
Mahapola & Bursaries 27-H          109,496,600          88,998,550 
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 27-I          264,225,171        228,905,365 
Total  Expenses       1,416,165,176     1,282,624,358 

Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period           36,574,605     (22,611,065)

Loss on disposal  of  Water  Bowser                         -               (316,251)
Gain on Disposal of Motor Car             2,650,000 

Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period           39,224,605        (22,927,315)

		  Restated
		  2016	 2015
	 Note	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Attributable to owners of the controlling entity
Contributed Other Accumulated Total Minority Total Net 

Capital Reserves Surpluses/
(Deficits)

Interest Assets/Equity

Balance At 31.12.2015  2,244,083,919 58,761,861 (285,866,170)                     2,016,979,610  -   2,016,979,610 

Changes in Accounting 
Policy & Errors

16,657,756                   16,657,756 - 16,657,756 

Restated Balances as at 
01.01.2016

       
2,244,083,919 58,761,861      

                     
(269,208,414) 2,033,637,366

 -         
2,033,637,366 

Changes in net assets/
equity for 2016

            
5,304,982 

                  
-   5,304,982

  -               
5,304,982 

Loss/Gain on property 
Revaluation

                        
-   

                  
-   

                                                         
-   -

  
-   

                        
-   

Gain on revaluation of 
investments

                        
-   

                  
-   

                                                         
-   -

          
 -   

                        
-   

Exchange differences on 
translating 

                        
-   

                  
-   

                                                         
-   -

 
-   

                        
-   

foreign operations

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity for the Year Ended  
31st December, 2016
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Net revenue recognized 
directly in net 

                        
-   

                
 -   

                                                        
-   -

  
-   

                        
-   

asset/equity - -

Deficit for the period                        -                  -           39,224,605                  
 

39,224,605            -   39,224,605

Total recognized revenue and 
expenses for the period

                        
-   

                  
-   

                                                         
-   -

           
-   

                        
-   

Balance As At 31.12.2016 
carried forward

      
2,249,388,901 

     
58,761,861 

                     
(229,983,808) 2,078,166,954

          
 -   

      
2,078,166,954 

	 Contributed	 Other	 Accumulated	 Total	 Minority	 Total Net
	 Capital	 Reserves	 Surpluses/
			   (Deficits)		  Interest	 Assets/Equity

Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2016

(Rs.) (Rs.)
2016 2015

Cash Flow From/(Used in) Operating Activities

 Surplus / ( Deficit)  from operating activities        39,224,605        (47,478,718)

Adjustment for
Non Cash Movements
Depreciation of Property Plant & Equipments      248,124,273       226,539,484 
Amortization Expenses        16,100,898                      -   
Provision for Gratuity        26,575,265         12,065,470 
Stock write off             417,558                      -   
(Surplus) / Loss  on  valuation  of  Live Stocks             (79,995)              152,655 
Disposal  Loss / (Gain) on  Motor Vehicles         (2,650,000)              316,251 
Lease Interest          2,244,287              516,143 
Ineterst Income         (8,042,860)                      -   
Deferred Income     (258,028,279)      (219,171,888)
Surplus / ( Deficit)  from Operations        63,885,750        (27,060,604)

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories           (346,373)           1,724,870 
(Increase )/ Decrease current assets       (45,477,506)           1,630,228 
(Increase) / Decrease  current liabilities        30,339,349        (11,101,839)
Payment  for  Gratuity         (2,303,033)         (1,742,182)
Net cash flows from Operation Activities        46,098,188        (36,549,527)

Cash Flow From/(Used in) Investing Activities
Acquisitions of Property plant & Equipments     (152,930,989)        (84,392,777)
Purchase of intangible Assets       (10,100,000)                      -   
Payments made for Work in Progress       (62,510,486)                      -   
Loans Payments       (24,164,891)        (18,408,337)
Loans Recoveries        20,079,703         20,354,997 
Insurance Receipts                     -             5,904,050 
Interest Income          8,042,860                      -   



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'06'08

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 08.06.2018 887

Payment for Deposits , HRD & Curriculum Revision         (3,854,750)                      -   
Payment made for Research Activities         (9,103,210)                      -   
Non current Asset                     -           (9,117,839)
Capital grant for the year      195,000,000       167,300,000 
Net cash flows from Investing Activities       (39,541,764)         81,640,094 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Receipts of Cash Donations                     -           12,548,743 
Capital Payments of Lease Creditor         (6,324,985)         (4,004,268)
Receipt to restricted funds          1,096,129           6,397,165 
Payment made from restricted funds         (2,991,521)         (3,390,305)
Net cash flows from Financing Activities         (8,220,377)         11,551,335 

Net Increased / (Decreased) in cash and cash equivalents         (1,663,952)         56,641,902 
Cash & Cash Equivalent as at the beginning of the year        76,295,157         19,653,255 
Cash & Cash Equivalent as at the end of the year        74,631,205         76,295,157 
Note A
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Cash and Bank Balances        74,631,205         76,295,157 

	 (Rs.)	 (Rs.)
	 2016	 2015

Comparative Statement of Financial Performance with Budget for the year Ended 
31st December, 2016

Note 2016  Actual
Rs.

2016 Budget
 Rs.

Revenue
Recurrent Grant     1,018,900,000     1,024,000,000 
Bursary and Mahapola Grants 23        109,496,600        109,496,600 
Self Finance Programme Income 24          34,291,545          15,500,000 
Other  Income 25          32,023,357          14,186,000 
Differed Income 26        258,028,279                       -   
Total  Revenue     1,452,739,781     1,163,182,600 
Operating Expenses

Personal Emoluments 27-A        763,189,206        771,571,000 
Travelling & Subsistence 27-B            5,475,750            2,800,000 
Supplies & Consumables 27-C          51,793,196          58,400,000 
Maintenance Expenses 27-D          18,036,147            9,500,000 
Contractual Services 27-E        132,521,905        136,550,000 
Other Recurrent Expenses 27-F          48,766,095          59,365,000 
Self Finance Programme Expenses 27-G          22,661,106          15,500,000 
Mahapola & Bursaries 27-H        109,496,600        109,496,600 
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 27-I        264,225,171                       -   
Total  Expenses     1,416,165,176     1,163,182,600 

Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period          36,574,605                       -   
                      -   

Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period          36,574,605                       -   
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COST PER STUDENT 2016

Total 
Expenditure 

2016

Absorption 
Method

Faculties

Agriculture Applied 
Science

Management Social 
Science

Geomatics

No. of Student 3758 304 944 1303 957 250
Direct cost 607,884,425 Direct 139,099,419 145,241,185 113,823,240 145,426,376 64,294,205 
Direct Cost Per Student          161,757        457,564         153,857         87,355      151,961    257,177 
Direct Administration  
cost

General   102,046,127 No. of 
students

  8,254,929    25,633,726  35,382,146  25,986,733  6,788,593 

Finance     18,398,156 No. of 
students

 1,488,302      4,621,570  6,379,137  4,685,214   1,223,933 

Supplies 9,476,502 No. of 
students

      766,593      2,380,473  3,285,759     2,413,255     630,422 

Transport     40,526,867 No. of 
students

  3,278,384   10,180,245 14,051,758  10,320,439   2,696,040 

Security      41,754,166 No. of 
students

 3,377,665    10,488,540  14,477,296   10,632,979  2,777,685 

Total    212,201,818   17,165,874 53,304,555 73,576,096  54,038,622 14,116,672
 

Direct Adm.Cost Per 
Student

             56,467        56,467           56,467        56,467       56,467         56,467 

Academic Support Service
 Examination    15,941,633 No. of 

students
  1,289,584    4,004,497    5,527,394   4,059,644 1,060,513 

 Library   22,611,721 No. of 
students

  1,829,155    5,680,006  7,840,094  5,758,227  1,504,239 

 Educational Technology  19,160,762 No. of 
students

 1,549,992  4,813,134    6,643,553    4,879,417  1,274,665 

 Health        3,279,870 No. of 
students

     265,322      823,895   1,137,219      835,241     218,193 

 Physical Education   11,241,293 No. of 
students

      909,354   2,823,784    3,897,660   2,862,671     747,824 

 Staff & Student Welfare    131,328,919 No. of 
students

  10,623,734   32,989,489  45,535,280   33,443,793  8,736,623 

 Lands & Building      51,491,851 No. of 
students

4,165,387  12,934,621   17,853,614   13,112,746 3,425,482 

 Electricity    25,186,054 No. of 
students

2,037,403      6,326,672 8,732,684     6,413,798  1,675,496 

 Water     943,731 No. of 
students

    76,342       237,063    327,217    240,328    62,781 

 Landscape Unit        1,295,302 No. of 
students

   104,782       325,377   449,116        329,857     86,170 

 Ancillary Activities       15,400,936 No. of 
students

 1,245,845     3,868,676  5,339,920     3,921,952   1,024,543 

Total    297,882,071   24,096,900  74,827,215 103,283,752 75,857,675  19,816,529 
Acad.Support cost per 
student

           79,266      79,266         79,266      79,266         79,266        79,266 

Total Expenditure 1, 117,968,314 180,362,192  273,372,955 290,683,088 275,322,672 98,227,406 
Cost per Student           297,490  593,297    289,590 223,088   287,693  392,910 

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.	 Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 General Policies

	 1.1.1 Reporting Entity

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka has been incorporated under the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 
and located at P.O. Box 02, Belihuloya. This is a National university mainly operates on government funds. 

1.1.2 Principal activities and nature of operations

The university primarily caters to local students in the fields of Agricultural Sciences, Social Sciences, 
Applied Sciences and Management Studies. The university is promoting higher studies and researches.
Faculty of Graduate Studies initiated its operations during the year 2016.

1.1.3	B asis of reparation

	 (a) 	 Statement of Compliance
		T  he Financial Statements comprise the statements of financial position, statement of financial performance, 

statement of changes in equity, cash flow statements and notes to the financial statements. 
		T  he Financial Statements of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka are prepared in conformity with Sri 

Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards for the accrual basis of accounts. All accounting policies adopted 
by the University are applied consistently with those of the previous year, where necessary comparative 
figures have been adjusted to conform to the changes, in presentation of current year figures.

	 (b) 	 Basis of measurement
		T  he Financial Statements of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka are prepared under the Historical 

Cost convention and do not take into account of changes in money values, except where it is stated. 

	 (c) 	 Functional and presentation currency
		T  he Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the University's functional and 

presentation currency.

	 (d)	 Going concern 
		T  he Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

1.2	 Assets and the basis of their valuation

1.2.1    Property, Plant & Equipment
Lands, Buildings, Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Fixtures & Fittings, Library Books and Periodicals, 
Motor Vehicles, Cloaks and Other Assets include the items acquired out of government grant, research 
grants, internally generated funds, and donations.

	 (a)	B asis of Recognition and Measurement
		  Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated 

with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. Properties, plant and 
equipments are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment 
is the cost of purchase or construction together with any incidental expenses thereon.

	 (b) 	Cost
		T  he cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost and any directly 

attributable cost of bringing the assets working condition for its intended use.
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	 (c)	 Subsequent expenditure on existing Fixed Assets
		  Expenditure incurred on tangible fixed assets is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in 

the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which case it is capitalized and 
depreciates on the relevant basis.

•	 Market value of fixed assets has subsequently increased.

•	 Asset capacity increase.

•	 Sustainable improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating cost.

•	 Significant extension of the asset life beyond that confirmed by repair and maintenance.

	 (d)	 Depreciation

		  Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on a Straight –Line Method over the 
estimated useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment items from the date that they were made available 
for use. Lands are not depreciated. The estimated useful life periods are as follows.

	 Description	E stimated useful life period

Buildings                                               	 20 years
Water Treatment plant	 20 years	
Office and Teaching Equipment                	  5 years
Computer & computer accessories	  5 years
Library Books and Periodicals            	  5 years
Communication Equipments	  5 years
Motor Vehicles     	  5 years
Cloaks                                                  	  5 years

             	   Other Equipments	  5 years
		
Depreciation is provided in full in the year of purchase and no depreciation is charged in the year of 
disposal. This method of depreciation is adopted in using the rates in the UGC circular 649 from the 
financial year 2006 and hope to continue in future. Also this method of calculation of depreciation was 
approved by our Council at its 117th meeting held on 20.01.2007.

The vehicle No. SG KE 9206, Motor car purchased in 2007 was fully damaged and condemned in 2016. 
The National Insurance Trust Fund agreed to provide maximum value of Rs. 2,650,000.00 as insurance 
recovery in the near future. Hence, the amounting to Rs. 2,650,000.00 has been accounted as insurance 
receivable in the statement of financial position and net value of the cost & insurance receivable has been 
charged to the statement of financial performance in 2016.

	 (e) 	Capital Works in Progress
		  Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. These are expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the 

construction of property,plant and equipment awaiting capitalisation. Capital work-in-progress would be 
transferred to the relevant asset category in property, plant and equipment, when it is available for use i.e., 
when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by the university.

1.2.2	 Intangible Assets
	 An Intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the 

expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company.	

	I ntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increase the future economic 
benefits embodied in the assets. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
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	 All intangible assets are considered to have a finite useful life and amortized using straight line method to 
write down the cost of intangible asset to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows.

a. Computer software is amortised over a period of 5 years on straight-line basis.
b. Cost of development of new curriculum is amortised over a period of 5 years on
Straight-line basis from the effective date of the new curriculum.

	I ntangible assets represent the software purchased under the HETC grant on their written down value and 
software purchased by the entity during the current financial year.

	
	 1.2.3	 Curriculum Revision
		T  he university revises the curriculum for all degree programs in every five years and amendments are not 

making within that period. Hence, the expenditure incurred on capital funds are amortize over the five years 
period on the basis that the economic benefits would flow to the university during the effective period of 
the new syllabus.Since the faculty of Management Studies and Faculty of Geomatics have implemented 
the revised curriculum w.e.f. 2015, the expenditure incurred on that are amortizes w.e.f. 2015.Also since 
the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences and the Faculty of Applied Sciences have implemented the revised 
curriculum w.e.f. 2016, the expenditure incurred on that are amortizes w.e.f. 2016.

	 1.2.4	K nowledge Enhancement
		T  he expenditure incurred to enhance the knowledge of the employees is treated as capital expenditure and 

amortize over 5 year period. 

	 1.2.5	 Livestock
		  Livestock are revalued and revaluation surplus / deficit charged to the statement of financial performance.

	 1.2.6		 Inventories
		I  nventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. In general, cost is determined on a first 

in first out basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their 
existing condition and location.

	 1.2.7		 Receivables
		  Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize.

	 1.2.8	U niversity Research Grant
		  As per the SLPSAS 20, no intangible asset arising from research phase of an internal project shall be 

recognized. Expenditure on research phase activities shall be recognized as an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible assets arising from development phase of an internal project shall be recognized if an only if 
the entity can demonstrate the recognition criteria. This Standered is adopted from the current financial year 
with retrospectively and hope to continue in future.

		T  he university has allocated funds to enhance research and development activities under the annual capital 
budget. The total amount spent for the research phase activities are shown as an expense in statement of 
financial performance. The aggregate amount of research expenditure recognized as expenditure during the 
year of 2016 is Rs.5, 611,980.

		  Also the amount spent for research phase activities and recognized as an asset for the year 2015 was  
Rs. 555,745.00 which is recognized as an expense and adjusted surplus and deficit of 2015 during the 
current financial year due to the adoption of SLPSAS 20 retrospectively.

	 1.2.9	 Cash & cash equivalents
		  Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash deposits at banks. 
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	 1.3	 Liabilities & Provisions
All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and adequate 
provisions are made for liabilities which are known to exit but the amount of which cannot be determined 
accurately.
Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as current 
liabilities in the balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as 
noncurrent liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.3.1 	 Employee Benefits

 	 (a) 	Defined Benefit Plans
		  Defined benefit plans estimate the amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement

		  Provision for retiring Gratuity
		T  he university has adopted the benefit plan as required under the payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983 

for all eligible employees.

		  Defined benefit plans define an amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement usually 
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. In order to meet this 
liability, a provision carried forward as at the reporting date, amount calculated based on an internal 
management assessment.Accordingly liability recognizes for the employees who have completed 5 years 
of service in the university system as at the reporting date.The resulting difference between brought forward 
provision as at the beginning of the period net of any payments made, and the carried forward provision at 
the end of the period is dealt with in the statement of profit and loss.

		T  he gratuity liability are not externally funded nor actuarially valued.

	 (b)	 Defined Contribution Plans 
		  A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into 

a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay a further amount. Obligations for 
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive 
income as and when they are due.

		  University Provident Fund (UPF)& University Pension Fund 
		T  he university and employees, contribute 15% or 7% and 10% respectively, on the salary of each employee 

to the University provident fund in line with the respective statutes and legislation in Sri Lanka and 
University Act. Also the university contributes 8% to the University Pension Fund in respect of pensionable 
employees.

		  Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF)
		T  he university contributes 3% on the salary of each employee to the Employees’Trust Fund.

	 1.3.2	 Leases

		F  inance Lease
		  A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership.

		  Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement
		I  nitially, assets held under financial lease and financial lease liabilities are recognized as assets and liabilities 

in the statement of financial position at their minimum lease payments.
		  Subsequent lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding 

liability using the effective interest method.

	 1.3.3	 Accounting for Grants
Grants that compensate the University for Expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the income 
statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that compensate the University 
for the Cost of an asset are recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life 
of the related asset.
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As per Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standered 20 the university adopted income approach 
accounting principal when identifying capital grants and donations w.e.f. 2014.01.01 and hope to continue 
in future.

1.3.4      Contingent Liabilities

Below mentioned all court cases are ongoing and we have to incur legal fees. Some compensation cannot 
be estimated at the moment. Therefore, no provision has been made in the accounts with regard to liabilities 
arising out of litigation.Ongoing court cases as at the balance sheet date are stated below.

District Court
3917 / M	 M.D.L.D.K.Yatawara,    
3918 / M	 M.D.L.D.K.Yatawara,
3401 / M	 Polytech janitorial service (L.A.K.Dihani Silva)
4248 / M 	 W.M.Deepika Priyadarshani
3947 / M	 A.Anuradha Rodrigo
3121 / M	 D.B.G.Jayathissa
3299 / M	 A.M.P.M.Kurunarathna
3555 / M	 D.M.Rathnayake

			   4708-especial	 A. Mahinda Methsiri

Supreme Court
13/2015(FR)	 D.T.Wickramarathne  
267/2014 (F/R)	 B.M.D.GA.D.Bandara Aberathne    

	 09/15(FR)	 R.H.A.S.S.Karunarathne
	H CCA LA 344/16	 M.Wimaladasa De Silva
			 

Court of Appeal
CA WRIT Application No.1047/2008	T .M.S.L.Priyadharshaka
Civil Appeal     
CA 66/2015	 M.Wimaladasa De Silva

High Court
37/2012-LTA			   G.Anura Bandara
38/2012 – LTA			   B.P.Gamini Anura
35/2012-LTA			   D.B.J.Wijerathne
36/2012- LTA			   K.Kithsiri Dayananda
34/2012 - LTA			U   pali Amarasena Ranathunga
HC/ARB/95/2014		  Design consultant
HC/ARB 207/2013		  Design consultant 

Human Rights Commission
HRC/642/15	H .M.G.P.Gunathilaka   
HRC/3598/15	 K.W.S.Thilakarathne
HRC/2958/2015 	 W.P.Elvitigala
IR/COM/05/H/2015/30	 P.B.Presad 
PTD/227/G/2014	 R.A.Udaya Kumara
11643/TP	 R.A.Udaya Kumara
BC1489/2014/b-25	 M.L.K.M.Dissanayaka
HRC/3562/15/L-6	 M.M.Wimalasiri & M.M.Indeera
HRC/2218/16/1-23	 P.S.N.Samarathunga
HRC/751/16(CP/LRR/HR/59)	 L. Guruge
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Magistrate Court	
51445/12		T  he case is filed by the Police to against a few Students. 
54123			T   he case is filed by the police 

Arbitration
ICLP Ref. No.238(i) –  Design Consultant ICLP Arbitration Centre.

		  Labour Tribunal
40/412/2013-LTB		 M.L.M.K.Dissanayake
40/255/2009-LTB		 S.K.Hemakkody

1.4	 Income Statement

1.4.1	 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized on accrual basis.

(a)	 Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.
(b)	 Revenue from grants are recognized in the period in which they were received
(c)	 Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt.
(d)	 Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

(e)	 Government Grants
Grant received from General Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka will comprises Capital and recurrent. 
Government grants utilized to acquire assets that will be expensed in subsequent period are recognized as differed 
income. 

Total grants received for the year was Rs. 1,323,396,600 which has been used as follows.

2016		  2015
 Rs.		  Rs.

Government Grant for Recurrent Expenditure	     1,018,900,000	 891,508,158
Government Grant for Mahapola Scholarships    	 57,906,800	 59,044,750
Government Grant for Bursaries	 51,589,800	 29,953,800
Capital Grants for Rehabilitation	 60,000,000	 25,000,000
Capital grants for Equipment, Book & Periodicals	 90,000,000	 82,000,000
Capital grants for Constructions	 40,000,000	   50,000,000
Knowledge Enhance & Institute Develop (HRD)	   5,000,000	 10,300,000			 
	 	
Total	 1,323,396,600	 1,147,806,708

1.4.2	 Expenditure
All expenditure incurred in maintaining the university has been recognized on accrual basis and charged to the 
revenue in ascertaining the income over expenditure.

1.5	 Comparative Information
The comparative figures have been reorganized where necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.

1.6	 Cash flow Statement
The cash flow statement has been prepared using indirect method.

1.7	 Following adjustments have been made to the General Reserves account based on the SLIPSAS 3.
Following amounts are debited

(a)	 Rs. 167,300.00		  Stock
(b)	 Rs. 8,500.00		I  ncome
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c)	 Rs. 6,310.40		  Payment of entertainment allowance
d)	 Rs. 13,422.77		  Payment of OT arrears
e)	 Rs. 27,060.00		  Retention repayment
f)	 Rs. 38,380.00		  Retention repayment
g)	 Rs. 31,500.00		  Payment to attorney at law
h)	 Rs. 52,500.00		  Payment to attorney at law
i)	 Rs. 77,700.00		  Repayment 
j)	 Rs. 68,398.00		  Accrued Expenses
k)	 Rs.225, 455.34		H  ETC Project
l)	 Rs. 319,599.58		  Work In Progress
m)	 Rs. 274.00		  Accrued expenses
n)	 Rs. 20,574.44		  Distress Loan
o)	 Rs. 555,745.00		U  niversity Research Grant
p)	 Rs. 1,096,713.51		I  nternational Symposium -2015
q)	 Rs. 46,000.00		  Depreciation –Motor Vehicle
r)	 Rs. 162,454.00		  Differed Income Donation
s)	 Rs. 10,108,669.00	 Account for CODL
t)	 Rs. 534,541.13		  Project Advance
u)	 Rs. 184,015.20		  Accumulated Depreciation-Other Equipments

Following amounts are credited

v)	 Rs. 167,300.00		  Cloaks
w)	 Rs. 1,295.34		I  ncome
x)	 Rs. 68,398.20		  Accrued Expenses
y)	 Rs. 1,055,228.95		  Sandee Research Grant
z)	 Rs. 179,710.08		  Accrued Expenses
aa)	 Rs. 1,908,200.00		  Mahapola Income
bb)	 Rs. 2,304,500.00		  Bursary Income
cc)	 Rs. 81,940.09		  Accrued Expenses Recurrent
dd)	 Rs. 10,291,046.34	 Accrued Expenses Recurrent
ee)	 Rs. 2,744,785.94		  Accrued Expenses Recurrent
ff)	 Rs. 1,060,964.69		  Accrued Expenses Recurrent
gg)	 Rs. 464,063.03		  Accrued Expenses Recurrent
hh)	 Rs. 666.00		  Accrued Expenses
ii)	 Rs. 300,223.50		  Gratuity over provision
jj)	 Rs. 162,454.00		  Depreciation Office & Teaching Equipment
kk)	 Rs. 1,555,075.20		  Over provision of Depreciation – Motor Vehicle
ll)	 Rs. 4,359,682.64		  Over provision of Accrued Expenses
mm)	 Rs. 509, 696.41	 Over provision of Accrued Expenses
nn)	 Rs. 521,574.00		  Drug Stock
oo)	 Rs. 25,949.60		F  oreign Student Scholarship Program me
pp)	 Rs. 1,871,603.20		  Grant from Economic Development Ministry
qq)	 Rs. 567,885.28		  Grant from Economic Development Ministry
rr)	 Rs. 160,000.00		  Start up Research Grant
ss)	 Rs. 6,600.00		I  nnovative Research Grant
tt)	 Rs. 24,026.83		  Annual Survey Camp

		

	 1.8	H igher Education for the 21st Century (HETC) Grant
	
		H  ETC project has provided funds to increase IT, English and soft skill abilities of under graduate students 

and also in improvement of research and development of Post Graduate Students.
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		F  inancial contribution received for both recurrent and capital expenditure of HETC project for the period of 
2012 to 2016 is given below. These expenses have not been included in the Financial Statements.

	 Description	 Rs.
	
	U niversity Development Grant	 22,435,284   
	 External Degree Programme Grant  	  10,028,688
	I DAS Grant	 18,234,913
	 Quality Improvement Grant	 36,141,404
	H uman Resource Development Grant	 20,847,339
	T otal  	 107,687,628

Out of this, assets purchased under the project valued Rs.77,827,930 and Rs. 20,078,188.81 spent for PhDs for 
academics are capitalized based on their written down value as at 01.01.2016 of Rs.66,638,815 in the year 2016. 
These assets are capitalized and the respective grant is amortized based on the university policies. 

1.9 Inter Company Accounts

When preparing the financial statements of the university the amounting to Rs. 27,916,037.94  payable to Center 
for Open & Distance Learning and receivable from Center for Open & Distance Learning is set off.

06-310

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
Union  Bank  of Colombo plc

Notice of Resolution passed by the Union Bank of 
Colombo PLC under Section 04 of the recovery of 

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed by 
the Board of Directors of Union Bank of Colombo PLC 
(hereinafter referred to as Union Bank) at the meeting held 
on 28th Mrach, 2018.

Board Resolution

Whereas Sagara Nilantha Wai Daniel alias Sagara 
Nilantha Waidaniyal (Holder of NIC No. 843441831V) of  
No. 316/A, St. Anthony's Mawatha, Thoduwawa, 
(hereinafter referred to as “the obligor”) carrying on 
business as a sole proprietorship under the name style 
and firm of “Santhosam farm” in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka, obtained a Financial Facility and 
whereas the Obligor executed Primary Mortgage Bond  
No. 1756 dated 01.08.2014, Secondary Mortgage Bond  
No. 1834 dated 04.09.2014, Tertiary Mortgage Bond 
No. 2217 dated 29.07.2015 over the property morefully 
described in the First Schedule hereto, Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1759 dated 01.08.2014, Secondary Mortgage 

Bond No. 1836 dated 04.09.2014, Tertiary Mortgage Bond 
No. 2221 dated 29.07.2015 over the property morefully 
described in the Second Schedule hereto, Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1832 dated 04.09.2014, Secondary Mortgage 
Bond No. 2225 dated 29.07.2015, Tertiary Mortgage Bond 
No. 2689 dated 07.10.2016 over the property morefully 
described in the Third Schedule hereto, Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1548 dated 27.01.2014, Secondary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1891 dated 24.10.2014, Tertiary Mortgage Bond 
No.  2219 dated 29.07.2015 over the property morefully 
described in the Fourth Schedule hereto all attested by W. S. 
N. Tissera, Notary Public and mortgaged and hypothecated 
the said properties morefully described in the said Schedule 
hereto as security for the payment of Rupees Thirty Million 
(Rs. 30,000,000) and interest thereon due to Union Bank 
of Colombo PLC bearing Registration No. PB 676PQ 
(hereinafter referred to as “Union Bank”) on account of the 
said Loan Facility.

And Whereas Rupees Thirty-one Million Five Hundred 
and Fifty Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty-seven Cents 
Eleven (Rs. 31,550,767.11) being the total outstanding on 
the said Loan Facility as at 05.02.2018 together with further 
interest at the rate of 18.50% per annum on the Capital 
Outstanding of Rupees Thirty Million (Rs. 30,000,000) 
from 06.02.2018 to the date of sale is due and owing from 
the said Obligor to Union Bank. 

And Whereas the Board of Directors of Union Bank 
acting under the powers vested in them under Section 3 of 
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the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 and being satisfied that the Obligor has made 
default in the payment of the aforesaid loan balance or parts 
thereof do hereby resolve in terms of Section 4 of the said 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 to authorize Thrivanka and Senanayake 
Licensed Auctioneers to sell by Public Auction in terms of 
the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 the properties mortgaged to Union 
Bank under and by virtue of the aforesaid Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1756 dated 01.08.2014, Secondary  Mortgage 
Bond No. 1834 dated 04.09.2014, Tertiary Mortgage 
Bond No. 2217 dated 29.07.2015, Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1759 dated 01.08.2014, Secondary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1836 dated 04.09.2014, Tertiary Mortgage Bond 
No. 2221 dated 29.07.2015, Primary Mortgage Bond No. 
1832 dated 04.09.2014, Secondary Mortgage Bond No. 
2225 dated 29.07.2015, Tertiary Mortgage Bond No. 2689 
dated 07.10.2016, Primary Mortgage Bond No. 1548 dated 
27.01.2014, Secondary Mortgage Bond No. 1891 dated 
24.10.2014, and Tertiary Mortgage Bond No.  2219 dated 
29.07.2015 all attested by W S N Tissera, Notary Public 
morefully described in the First, Second, Third, and Fourth 
Schedules hereto for the recovery of Rupees Thirty One 
Million Five Hundred and Fifty Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Sixty-seven Cents Eleven (Rs. 31,550,767.11), being the 
total outstanding on the said Loan Facility as at 05.02.2018 
together with further interest at the rate of 18.50% per 
annum on the Capital Outstanding of Rupees Thirty Million 
(Rs. 30,000,000) from 06.02.2018 to the date of sale and 
all other amount Union Bank is entitled to recover in terms 
of the said Mortgage Bonds and Section 13 of the said Act,  
No. 4 of 1990.

 first Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 in Plan No. 1712 dated 14.04.1999 made by  
P. W. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Thoduwawa Estate & Palugahahena situated at Thoduwawa 
South Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of No. 
531 B Meda Thoduwawa and Divisional Secretarial of 
Nattandiya in Yatakalan Pattu of Pitigal Korale South in 
the District of Puttalam North Western Province and which 
said Lot 02 is bounded on the North by Road (P/S), on the 
East by Lot D in Plan No. 4473, on the South by Lot 01 in 
Plan No. 1712 and, on the West by Lot 03 in Plan No. 1712 
(Road reservation 8 feet wide) and  containing in extent 
of Thirty-seven Decimal Thirty-two Perches (0A., 0R., 
37.32P.) together with everything else standing thereon and 
registered in Volume/ Folio K 165/55 & 56 at the Marawila 
Land Registry.

According to the recent survey aforesaid land is described 
as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 in Plan No. 5064 dated 04.02.2011 made by  

P. W. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Thoduwawa Estate & Palugahahena situated at Thoduwawa 
South Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of No. 
531 B Meda Thoduwawa and Divisional Secretariat of 
Nattandiya in Yatakalan Pattu of Pitigal Korale South in the 
District of Puttalam North Western Province and which said 
Lot 01 is bounded on the North by Anthony Mawatha, on 
the East by Lot D in Plan No. 4473, on the South by Lot 
01 in Plan No. 1712 and, on the West by Lot 03 in Plan 
No. 1712 (Road reservation 8 feet wide) and  containing 
in extent of Thirty-seven Decimal Thirty-two Perches (0A., 
0R., 37.32P.) together with everything else standing thereon.

Together with the right of way over and along with the 
following land.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 03 (Road reservation 8 feet wide) in Plan No. 1712 
dated 14.04.1999 made by P. W. Fernando of the land called 
Thoduwawa Estate & Palugahahena situated at Thoduwawa 
South Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of  
No. 531 B Meda Thoduwawa and Divisional Secretariat of 
Nattandiya in Yatakalan Pattu of Pitigal Korale South in the 
District of Puttalam North Western Province and which said 
Lot 03 is bounded on the North by Road (P/S) on the East 
by Lot 2 in Plan No. 1712, on the South by Lot 01 in Plan 
No. 1712 and, on the West by Lot E1 in Plan No. 2061 dated 
21.11.1964 made by Vernan Perera, Licensed Surveyor and 
containing in extent of Four Decimal Five Nine Perches 
(0A., 0R., 4.59P.) together with everything else standing 
thereon.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1B in Plan No. 7391 dated 18.11.1992 made by  
M. Denver Fernando, Licensed Surveyor out of the 
land called Palugahawatta bearing No. D480 situated at 
Thoduwawa Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Thoduwawa North and Divisional Secretariat of Nattandiya 
in Yatakalan Pattu of  Pitigal Korale South in the District of 
Puttalam North Western Province and which said Lot 1B is 
bounded on the North by Land of Ranjanie Perera on the 
East by Lot 2 in Plan No. 7391 made by M. D. Fernando 
LS on the South by Land of Grace Mary Lucilda and on the 
West by Lot 1A in the said Plan No. 7391 and containing in 
extent of Twenty Two Decimal Eight Seven Five Perches 
(0A., 0R., 22.875P.) together with everything else standing 
thereon and registered in Volume/Folio K 165/57 & 58 at the 
Marawila Land Registry.

According to a recent survey aforesaid land is described 
as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 in Plan No. 0049 dated 06.05.2012 made by W. S. A. 
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Fonseka Licensed Surveyor of the land called Palugahawatta 
bearing No. D480 situated at Thoduwawa Village within 
the Grama Niladhari Division of  Thoduwawa North and 
Divisional Secretariat of Nattandiya in Yatakalan Pattu 
of  Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puttalam North 
Western Province and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the 
North by Land of  Kingsly Dias on the East by Land of 
Grace Mary Lucilda on the South by Land of Grace Mary 
Lucilda and on the West by Lot 3 in the said Plan No. 0049 
(10 feet wide Road) and Lot 01 in the said Plan No. 0049 
& remaining portion of  Lot 1A in Plan No. 7391 made by  
M. D. Fernando LS and containing in extent of Twenty 
Decimal Six Perches (0A., 0R., 20.6P.) together with 
everything else standing thereon.

Together with the right of way over and along with the 
following land.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3(Road Reservation 10ft wide) in Plan No. 0049 dated 
06.05.2012 made by W. S. A. Fonseka Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called Palugahawatta  situated at Thoduwawa 
Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of  Thoduwawa 
North and Divisional Secretariat of Nattandiya in Yatakalan 
Pattu of  Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puttalam 
North Western Province and which said Lot 3 is bounded 
on the North  by Lot 01 in said Plan No. 0049 on the East 
by Lot 2 in Plan No. 0049 on the South by Land of Grace 
Mary Lucilda and on the West  by Pradeshiya Saba Road 
and containing in extent of Two Decimal Two Perches  
(0A., 0R., 2.2P.) together with everything else standing 
thereon.

THE THIRD SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of  land marked 
Lot 02 in Plan No. 2747B dated 10.05.2013 made by A. A. 
Wimalasena Licensed Surveyor of the land called Henepola 
Estate situated at Henepola Village within the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Henepola and Divisional Secretariat 
of  Madampe in Yagam Pattu of Pitigal Korale North in 
the District of Puttalam North Western Province and which 
said Lot 02 is bounded on the North by Lot 2 in Plan  
No. 2747 made by A. A. Wimalasena LS on the East by Land of  
S. A. Sunimal & others and Road 12ft wide on the South by 
Balance portion of Lot B in Plan No. 6501 made by Vernan 
Perera and on the West by Lot 1 in Plan No. 2747B and 
containing in extent of Two Acre Two Roods and Six Decimal 
Five Perches (02A., 02R., 06.5P.) together with everything 

else standing thereon and registered in Volume/Folio  
F 13/107 at the Chilaw Land registry. Now carried over to 
F 13/125.

Together with the right of way over and along with the 
following land:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
01 (Road reservation 12 feet wide) in Plan No. 2747D dated 
02.09.2014 made by A. A. Wimalasena Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called Henepola Estate situated at Henepola 
Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of Henepola 
and Divisional Secretariat of  Madampe in Yagam Pattu 
of  Pitigal Korale North in the District of  Puttalam North 
Western Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the 
North by Land of S. A. Sunimal & others on the East by 
Pradeshiya Saba Road on the South by Balance portion of 
same land and on the West by Lot 2 in Plan No. 2747B dated 
10.05.2013 made by A. A. Wimalasena LS and containing 
in extent of Three decimal Six Perches (0A., 0R., 3.6P.) 
and registered in  Volume/Folio F 45/74 at the Chilaw Land 
registry.

THE FORTH SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of  land marked 
Lot 02 in Plan No. 4886 dated 13.08.2005 made by R. F. H. 
Fernando Licensed Surveyor of the land called Palugahahena 
bearing P48 Palugahahena bearing M481 and part of 
Thoduwawa Estate situated at Meda Thoduwawa Village 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of No. 531 Meda 
Thoduwawa and Pradeshiya Saba limits of  Nattandiya, 
Divisional Secretariat of Mahawewa in Yatakalan Pattu 
of Pitigal Korale South in the District of  Puttalam, North 
Western Province and  which said Lot 02 is bounded on the 
North by Anthony Mawatha on the East by 8 feet wide Road 
and Land on Winifreeda & Keerthi on the South by Land 
of  Chandrani and Jane and on the West by Lot 01 in Plan  
No. 4886 and containing in extent of One Rood Five Decimal 
One Perches (0A., 01R., 5.1P.) together with everything else 
standing thereon and registered in Volume/Folio K 166/75 at 
the Marawila Land registry.

By order of the Board.

	 Inoka Jayawardhana,
	 Secretary to the Board.

06-540
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Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

New Buddika Bajaj Center
A/C No. : 0183 1000 0317

At a meeting held on 26.04.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Mapa Pathirannehelage Buddika Udaya 
Kumara Mapa Pathirana  being the sole proprietor of the 
business carried on in the Democratic Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka under the name and style of “New Buddika 
Bajaj Center” as the Obligor has made default in the 
repayment of the credit facilities granted against the 
security of the property and premises more fully described 
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by 
the Mortgage Bond No. 438 dated 29th November, 2012 
attested by K. N. K. Karunathilake of Gampaha Notary 
Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office 
at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing on the said Bond No. 438 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 21st March, 2018 
a sum of Rupees Six Million Six Hundred and Two 
Thousand Three Hundred and Fifty-three and Cents 
Sixty-seven only (Rs. 6,602,353.67) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC under the powers vested by the recovery of loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the properties and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit facility 
by the said Bond No. 438 to be sold in public auction by 
P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Six Million  Six 
Hundred and Two Thousand Three Hundred and Fifty-
three and cents Sixty Seven only (Rs. 6,602,353.67) 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Two 
Hundred and Forty-five Thousand Five Hundred and 
Seventy only (Rs. 245,570) at the rate of 5 years Treasury 
Bond Rate + Two per centum (2%) and further interest 
on a further sum of Rupees One Million Five Hundred 
Thousand only (Rs. 1,500,000) at the rate of Ten decimal 
Five per centum (10.5%) per annum from 22nd March, 
2018 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon 
the said Bond bearing No. 438 together with costs of 

advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1404 dated 13th October, 2002 
made by W. P. S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Kahatagahalanda and Gokele” together with the 
soil, trees, buildings and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Assennawatta and Watinapaha villages within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Divulapitiya in Dasiya Pattu 
of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha Western 
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by 
Ela, on the East by Ela and Road (RDA), on the South by 
Road (RDA) and remaining portion of same land of M. P. 
Senevirathne and on the West by remaining portion of same 
land of M. P. Senevirathne and containing in extent Fifteen 
Perches (0A., 0R., 15P.) according to the said Plan No. 1404 
and registered under Volume/Folio A 291/270 at the Land 
Registry Gampaha.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

06-503

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

K. Muthukumar.
A/C No. : 1042 5715 0083.

At a meeting held on 26.04.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Kumarasamy Muthukumar in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made 
default in the repayment of the credit facility granted 
against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 5471 dated 
06th April, 2017 attested by R. G. D. Sunari of Colombo 
Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding 
Company Registration No. PQ 144 and having its 
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Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, 
Colombo 02 and there is now due and owing on the said 
Bond bearing No. 5471 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid 
as at 19th March, 2018 a sum of Rupees Thirteen Million 
Five Hundred and Eighty-two Thousand Five Hundred 
and Twenty-eight and Cents Six only (Rs. 13,582,528.06) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for 
the said credit facility by the said Bond bearing No. 5471 
to be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of 
Rupees Thirteen Million Five Hundred and Eighty-two 
Thousand Five Hundred and Twenty-eight and Cents Six 
only (Rs. 13,582,528.06) together with further interest 
on a sum of Rupees Twelve Million Five Hundred and 
Sixty-nine Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-seven and 
Cents Fifty-three only (Rs. 12,569,667.53) at the rate of 
Thirteen Decimal Five per centum (13.5%) per annum 
from 20th March, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the total 
debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 5471 together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 2624 dated 24th September, 
2008 made by K. D. F. R. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of 
the and called “Kamatagodella” together with the trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assmt. No. 52/34, Kanthi Mawatha situated at Hunupitiya 
in Grama Niladhari Division of 256/B, Welegoda Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Kelaniya and the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Kelaniya in Adikari Pattu of  Siyane Korale in the 
District of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 
1 is bounded on the North by Lot A in Plan No. 1285 dated 
03rd October, 1988 made by K. D. F. R. Perera, Licensed 
Surveyor, on the East by Kimbulakotuwa Kumbura claimed 
by Baby Nona, on the South by Part of Lot B in Plan  
No. 1285 dated 03rd October, 1988 made by K. D. Felix 
R Perera, Licensed Surveyor and on the West by Kanthi 
Mawatha and containing in extent Ten decimal Nine One 
Perches (0A., 0R., 10.91P.) according to the aforesaid Plan 
No. 2624.

Which said Lot 1 is a resurvey of land more fully 
described below:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
in Plan No. 1295 dated 31st May, 1989 made by K. D. F. R. 

Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kamatagodella”  
together with the trees, plantations and everything else 
standing thereon situated at Hunupitiya aforesaid and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot A in Plan  
No. 1285 dated 03rd October, 1988 made by K. D. F. R. 
Perera, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Kimbulakotuwa 
Kumbura claimed by Baby Nona, on the South by part 
of the same land and on the West by Road (Lot 9 in Plan  
No. 991 made by K. D. F. R. Perera, Licensed Surveyor) and 
containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) according 
to the aforesaid Plan No. 1295 and Registered in Volume/
Folio G 174/15 at the land Registry Colombo.

Together with the right of way under, over and along:-

Lot 1C (Reservation for Road -20 feet wide) depicted 
in Plan No. 04/1976 dated 01st February, 1976 made by  
K. Balasundaram, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

06-504

Union  Bank  of Colombo plc

Notice of Resolution passed by the Union Bank of 
Colombo PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of 

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed by 
the Board of Directors of Union Bank of Colombo PLC 
(hereinafter referred to as Union Bank) at the meeting held 
on 28th Mrach, 2018.

Board Resolution

Whereas Lalitha Nuwan Wanniarachchi (Holder of NIC  
No. 831880554V) of Yagala, Panugalgodawatta, 
Dikkumbura Ahangama in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka, (hereinafter referred to as “the 
obligor”) obtained Financial Facilities and whereas the 
Obligor executed Primary Mortgage Bond No. 4443 dated 
02.11.2015 and attested by Keerthi Kaluarachchi, Notary 
Public for (Rs. 9,900,000) and mortgaged and hypothecated 
the property morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
as security for the payment of Rupees Nine Million Nine 
Hundred Thousand (Rs. 9,900,000) and interest thereon 
due to Union Bank of Colombo PLC bearing Registration 
No. PB 676PQ (hereinafter referred to as “Union Bank”) on 
account of the said Financial Facilities.
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And Whereas as at 21.01.2018 there is a sum of Sri Lankan 
Rupees Six Million Four Hundred Sixty-seven Thousand 
Six and Cents Sixty-seven (Rs. 6,467,006.67) together with 
further  interest thereon is due and owing from the said 
Obligor to Union Bank as follows:

1. a sum of Sri Lanka Rupees One Million Six Hundred 
and Seventy-seven Thousand One Hundred and Fifty-seven 
Cents Eighty (Rs. 1,677,157.80) being the total outstanding 
on the Term Loan Facility as at 21.01.2018 together with 
further interest at the rate of 19.5% per annum on the Capital 
Outstanding  of Sri Lanka Rupees One Million Five Hundred 
and Sixty Thousand (Rs. 1,560,000) from 22.01.2018 to the 
date of sale;

2. a sum of Sri Lanka Rupees Four Million Seven 
Hundred and Eighty-nine Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Forty-eight Cents Eighty-seven (Rs. 4,789,848.87) being the 
total outstanding on the Overdraft Facility as at 21.01.2018 
together with further interest thereon at the rate of 28% per 
annum from 22nd January, 2018 to the date of sale.

And Whereas the Board of Directors of Union Bank 
acting under the powers vested in them under Section 3 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 and being satisfied that the Obligor has made 
default in the payment of the aforesaid loan balances or parts 
thereof do hereby resolve in terms of Section 4 of the said 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 to authorize Thrivanka and Senanayake 
Licensed Auctioneers to sell by Public Auction in terms 
of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 the property mortgaged to 
Union Bank under and by virtue of the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond No. 4443 morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
for the recovery of the said sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Six 
Million Four Hundred Sixty-seven Thousand Six and Cents 
Sixty-seven (Rs. 6,467,006.67), due the owing from the said 
Obligor to Union Bank as at 21st January, 2018 as above on 
account of the said Financial Facilities together with further 
interest at the rates aforesaid from 22.01.2018 to the date of 
sale and all other amounts Union Bank is entitled to recover 
in terms of the said Mortgage Bonds No. 4443 and under 
Section 13 of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990.

Schedule

All that entirely of the soil and plantation together 
with everything else standing thereon of the defined 
allotment of divided and  separated land marked Lot 1A 
depicted in Plan No. 4491 dated 09.09.2012 made by  
D. U. Abeygunawardhana, Licensed Surveyor Matara of 
being resurvey and subdivided of Lot 1 in Plan No. 994 
dated 21.02.1994 made by D. U. Abeygunawardhana being 
amalgamated and contiguous Lots 11 and 12 of Lot A of the 
land called Modarawilahena situated at Rambukana within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Pitabeddara and Divisional 

Secretarial Limits of Pitabeddara and Grama Niladhari 
Division of Rambukana West within the Morawak Korale in 
the District of Matara Southern Province and which said Lot 
1A is bounded on the North and North East by portion of the 
same land, on the South by Access to the Morawaka Neluwa 
Main Road, on the South-West by Lot 1B of the same land 
and on the West by portion of the same land and containing 
in extent of Five Acres (05A., 0R., 0P.) and registered in 
Volume and Folio G 159/297 of the District Land Registry 
of Kotapola.

AND

All that entirely of the soil and plantation together 
with everything else standing thereon of the defined 
allotment of divided and separated land marked Lot 1B 
depicted in Plan No. 4491 dated 09.09.2012 made by  
D. U. Abeygunawardhana, Licensed Surveyor Matara of 
being resurvey and subdivided of Lot 1 in Plan No. 994 
dated 21.02.1994 made by D. U. Abeygunawardhana being 
amalgamated and contiguous Lots 11 and 12 of Lot A of the 
land called Modarawilahena situated at Rambukana within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Pitabeddara and Divisional 
Secretarial Limits of Pitabeddara and Grama Niladhari 
Division of Rambukana West within the Morawak Korale in 
the District of Matara Southern Province and which said Lot 
1B is bounded on the North by portion of the same land, on 
the East by Lot 1A of the same land, on the South by Access 
to Morawaka Neluwa Main Road, on the South-West by 
Access to Morawaka Neluwa Main Road and containing in 
extent of Two Acres Two Roods and Twenty Four Perches 
(02A., 02R., 24P.) and registered in Volume and Folio  
G 196/121 of the District Land Registry of Kotapola.

By order of the Board.

	I noka Jayawardhana,
	 Secretary to the Board.

06-539

bank  of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act, No. 

34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

at a meeting held on 02.05.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously:

1. That a sum of Rupees Thirty-two Million Six Hundred 
and Thirty-eight Thousand Five Hundred and Fifrty-two 
and cents Seventy-four (Rs. 32,638,552.74) on account of 
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the principal and interest up to 18.04.2018 and together 
with further interest on Rupees Twenty-eight Million Eight 
Hundred and Forty Thousand Four Hundred and Nine and 
cents Eighty-six (Rs. 28,840,409.86) at the rate of Sixteen 
(16%) per centum per annum from 19.04.2018 till date of 
payment on reschedule loan A, a sum of Rupees Six Million 
Eight Hundred and Four Thousand and Eighty-Nine and 
cents Twenty-seven (Rs. 6,804,089.27) on account of the 
principal and interest up to 18.04.2018 and together with 
further interest on Rupees Six Million Six Hundred and 
Twenty-nine Thousand Five Hundred and Seventy-six and 
cents Seventeen (Rs. 6,629,576.17) at the rate of Four (4%) 
per centum per annum from 19.04.2018 till date of payment 
on reschedule loan B and a sum of Rupees Sixteen Million 
Seven Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Sixty-four and cents Seventy-three (Rs. 16,788,764.73) 
on account of the principal and interest up to 18.04.2018 and 
together with further interest on Rupees Fourteen Million 
Seven Hundred and Ninety-four Thousand and Thirty-
two and cents Sixty-six (Rs. 14,794,032.66) at the rate of 
Sixteen (16%) per centum per annum from 19.04.2018 
till date of payment on term loan is due from M/s Dinali 
Bakers and Pastry Shop of No. 155, Horana Road, Wekada, 
Panadura, presently at No. 155, Horana Road, Wekada, 
Panadura (Partners: Mr. Mashala Hewage Samantha 
Prasad and Mrs. Pathirage Dona Priyangika Peiris, both of  
No. 206, Main Street, Panadura, Presently at No. 155, Horana 
Road, Wekada, Panadura) on Mortgage Bond Nos. 3165 
dated 12.12.2011 and 3281 dated 16.02.2012 both attested 
by D. Kithulgoda, Notary Public Mortgage Bond No. 2090 
dated 11.01.2013 and 2549 dated 04.06.2014 both attested 
by D. Weerasuriya, Notary Public Mortgage Bond No. 1686 
dated 24.04.2017 attested by S. T. Perera, Notary Public 
and Mortgage Bond No. 2573 dated 10.02.2011 attested by  
D. Kithulgoda, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) and its amendments, Mr. Thusitha 
Karunaratne, M/s T & H Auctions, the Auctioneer of 
No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa, be authorized 
and empowered to sell by public auction, the property 
mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the 
Schedules hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum of 
Rupees Thirty-two Million Six Hundred and Thirty-eight 
Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty-two and cents Seventy-
four (Rs. 32,638,552.74) on reschedule Loan A, Rupees Six 
Million Eight Hundred and Four Thousand Eighty-nine and 
cents Twenty-seven (Rs. 6,804,089.27) on reschedule loan 
B, Rupees Sixteen Million Seven Hundred and Eighty-eight 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty-four and cents Seventy-
three (Rs. 16,788,764.73) on term loan are due on the said 
Bond Nos. 3165 dated 12.12.2011, 3281 dated 16.02.2012, 
2090 dated 11.01.2013, 1686 dated 24.04.2017, 2549 
dated 04.06.2014 and 2573 dated 10.02.2011 and together 
with interest as aforesaid from 19.04.2018 to date of sale 

and costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 of the 
said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and the Senior Manager 
of Panadura Super Grade Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to 
publish notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the 
said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 317 dated 03rd July, 2011 made 
by P. Ajith P. De Silva, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Bulugahawatta Senkondaya Ketakelagahawatta and 
Kahatagahawatta alias Ketakelagahawatta” together with 
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing 
thereon situated at Wekada within the Urban Council 
Limits of Panadura in Divisional Secretary’s Division of 
Panadura and Gramaseva Niladhari Division of 687 Wekada 
in Panadura Talpiti Debadda of Panadura Totamune in the 
District of Kalutara Western Province and which said Lot 
1 is bounded on the North by remaining portion of Lot A 
in Plan No. 4002, on the East by Lot B of the same land in 
Plan No. 4002 and Lot 2, on the South by Lot 2 and High 
Road and on the West by Lot 4 of the same land in Plan  
No. 3110 and containing in extent Sixteen Perches  
(0A., 0R., 16P.) according to the said Plan No. 317 and 
registered in D 04/132 at the Land Registry, Panadura.

first schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 22A1 depicted in Plan No. 1039 dated 01st May, 
2002 made by J. N. Wickramaratne, Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called “Godaporagahawatta” (Registered as 
Godaporagahawatta Kattiya) together with the buildings, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Malamulla Village with the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Panadura (Tantirimulla Sub Office) in Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Panadura and Gramaseva Niladhari 
Division of Malamulla West (684A) in Panadura Talpiti 
Debadda of Panadura Totamune in the District of Kalutara 
Western Province and which said Lot 22A1 is bounded on 
the North by Road from Panadura to Houses, on the East 
by Lot 22A3 (Road Access) in Plan No. 1039 dated 01st 
May, 2002, on the South by Lot 22A2 in Plan No. 1039 
dated 01.05.2002 and on the West by Remaining portion of 
Lot 22 in Plan No. 3257 dated 27.10.2001 made by Y. B. 
K. Costa and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 
10P.) according to the said Plan No. 1039 and registered in  
D 328/24 at the Land Registry, Panadura.

second schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 22A 3 (Reservation for Road) depicted in the said Plan  
No. 1039 of the land called “Godaporagahawatta” 
(Registered as Godaporagahawatta Kattiya) situated at 
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Malamulla Village aforesaid and which said Lot 22A3 is 
bounded on the North by Road from Panadura to Houses 
on the East by Lot 22A4 and 22A5 in Plan No. 1039, on the 
South by Lot 22A6 in Plan No. 1039 and on the West by Lot 
22A2 and 22A1 in Plan No. 1039 and containing in extent 
Three decimal Six Perches (0A., 0R., 3.6P.) according to the 
said Plan No. 1039 and registered in D 07/51 at the Land 
Registry Panadura.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 Mrs. L. K. Gamane,
	 Senior Manageress.

Bank of Ceylon,
Panadura Super Grade.

06-559

bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

mortgaged property at “Goda Idama” situated at 
Kawuduluwewa Stage I, Village in Grama Niladhari 
Division of No. 88, Diyasenpura for the liabilities of Mr. 
Wele Mudiyanselage Jayasiri Abeyrathne, sole propritor of 
Jayabimalanka Filling Station of School Lane, Diyasenpura, 
Medirigiriya.

At a meeting held on 2nd April, 2018, the Board of 
Directors of this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

1. That a sum of Rupees Two Million Seven Hundred 
Thirty-two Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-five Rupees 
and Cents Forty-one (Rs. 2,732,965.41) on account of the 
principal and interest up to 27.07.2017 and together with 
further interest on Rupees Two Million Six Hundred Sixty-
five Thousand Four Hundred Thirteen and cents Eighty-two 
(Rs. 2,665,413.82) at the rate of Eight (8%) per centum 
per annum from 28.07.2017 till date of payment on BOC 
Special Credit Line Loan facility and a sum of Rupees Three 
Million Seventy-six Thousand Seven and cents Six (Rs. 
3,076,007.06) on account of the principal and interest up 
to 27.07.2017 and together with further interest on Rupees 
Two Million Nine Hundred Ninety-eight Thousand Two 
Hundred Fifty-five and cents Fifty-seven (Rs. 2,998,255.57) 
at the rate of Seventeen (17%) per centum per annum from 
28.07.2017 till date of payment on POD Facility is due from 
Wele Mudiyanselage Jayasiri Abeyrathne of Jayabima, 
School Lane, Diyasenpura, Medirigiriya on Mortgage Bond 

No. 2697 dated 29th October, 2014 and 3232 dated 07th 
March, 2017 both attested by Ariyasena Gallage, Notary 
Public.

2. That in terms of section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) and its amendments, M/S 
Schokman and Samarawickrama be authorized and 
empowered to sell by public auction, the property mortgaged 
to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the Schedules 
hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Two 
Million Seven Hundred Thirty-two Thousand Nine Hundred 
Sixty-five Rupees and Cents Forty-one (Rs. 2,732,965.41) 
on BOC Special Credit Line Loan Facility and Rupees 
Three Million Seventy-six Thousand Seven and cents Six 
(Rs. 3,076,007.06) on POD Facility, due on the said Bond 
No. 2697 dated 29.10.2014 and 3232 dated 07.03.2017 and 
together with interest as aforesaid from 28.07.2017 to date 
of sale and costs and monies recoverable under section 26 
of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and the Manager of 
Medirigiriya Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to publish notice 
of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank of 
Ceylon Ordinance.

3. That the said Manager of Medirigiriya Branch, be 
authorized to fix a date, time and place for the aforesaid sale 
in consultation with the said Auctioneer M/S Schokman and  
Samarawickrama and that notice of such sale be advertised 
by the said Manager of Medirigiriya Branch, in terms of 
Section 22 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that 
the said Auctioneer gives necessary publicity for the sale 
by means of posters, handbills and other means deemed 
suitable.

4. That the General Manager or Deputy General Manager 
(Recovery) of the Bank fixes shortly before the date of the 
sale, the upset price in terms of Section 24 of the said Bank 
of Ceylon Ordinance, i. e. price below which the property 
cannot be sold to anyone except the Bank.

5. That the General Manager or an authorized officer be 
authorized to determine such percentage or amount to be 
recovered as costs for advertising and selling the mortgaged 
property.

6. That the said Manager of Medirigiriya Branch or him 
authorized representative be authorized to represent the 
Bank at the sale, bid for and purchase the said property on 
behalf of the Bank for a nominal sum in the event of there 
being no bidder at a price in excess of the upset price or the 
Bank’s claim, costs and other monies as aforesaid.

7. That the common seal of the Bank be affixed to the 
Certificate of sale, relating to the property described in the 
Schedule given hereunder in favour of the highest bidder 
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whose bid has been accepted by the Bank if the bid is in 
excess of the upset price and othe costs as detailed in paras 
4 and 5 above or if the property is purchased by the Bank in 
terms of the para 6 above.   

THrst  SCHEDU

1. All that divided and defined an allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. NM/111 dated 16.09.1996 made 
by N. Mahalingam, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Goda Idama” situated at Kauduluwewa Stage 1, Village 
in Grama Niladhari Division of No. 88, Diyasenpura in 
Sinhala Pattuwa within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and 
the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Medirigiriya in the 
District of Polonnaruwa, North Central Province aforesaid 
and which said Lot No. 01 is bounded on the North by Lot 
Nos. 142 and 141, on the East by Lot No. 2, on the South 
by Irrigation channel and on the West by Lot No. 140 and 
containing in extent One Acre (1A., 0R., 0P.) together with 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon and 
registered in L. D. O. F/7/85 at the District Land Registry, 
Polonnaruwa.

Which said land according to the Recent Survey Plan  
No. 2014/PO/37 dated 01.06.2014 made by P. B. 
Ilangasinghe, Licensed Surveyor is described as follows:

All that divided and defined an allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 2014/Po/37 dated 01.06.2014 
made by P. B. Ilangasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Goda Idama” situated at Kauduluwewa Stage 1, 
Village aforesaid and which said Lot No. 01 is bounded 
on the North by Lot Nos. 142 and 141 in F. C. P. Po. 82, 
on the East by Lot No. 2 in Plan No. NM/111, made by  
N. Mahalingam, Licensed Surveyor, on the South by Road 
(Irrigation Department) and on the West by Lot No. 140 in  
F. C. P. Po 82 and containing in extent One Acre (1A., 0R., 
0P.) or Nought decimal Four Nought Four Six Hectare 
(0.4046 Hectare) together with trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon.

The Prior Permission of the Divisional Secretary of 
Medirigiriya Mortgage the Land for the Bank has been 
granted by his letters dated 16.07.2014 and 08.11.2016 
under his reference No. tkaiSmS$tïÔ$t,a 4$nexl=$wem.    

secondhEDuLE

Reservations:

01.	T he title to all minerals (which term shall in this 
grant include precious stone) in or upon the holding and the 
right to dig for, search for, work and carry away any such 
minerals are reserved to the state.

02. The owner’s title to the holding is subject to any right 
of way or other servitude existing over the holding at the 
date of this grant.

Conditions:

01. The owner shall not dispose of a divided portion of the 
holding less in extent than the unit of sub-division specified 
herein namely 1/4 acres highland 1 1/2 acres irrigated land.

02. The owner shall not dispose of an undivided share of 
the holding less than the minimum fraction specified herein, 
namely 1/7 acres.

03.	 No person shall be the owner of a divided portion 
of the holding less in extent than the unit of sub-division 
specified in condition 1.

04.	 No person shall be the owner of an undivided share 
of the holdings less than the minimum fraction specified in 
condition 2.

05. If the holding or any part of it is irrigable or becomes 
irrigable hreafter by any irrigation work already constructed 
in the course of construction, or to be constructed hereafter, 
the owner shall comply, in respect of the irrigable area, with 
the provisions of the irrigation ordinance (chapter 453) and 
any rules framed there under.

06. The owner shall not dig or search for take, appropriate, 
sell or otherwise dispose of any minerals in or upon the 
land, unless he has obtained permission in writing from 
the Government Agent and a license from the appropriate 
authority.

07. No disposition of the holding or any portion thereof 
shall be made except with the prior permission in writing of 
the divisional Secretary.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 Mr. K. G. D. P. Udayarathne,
	 Manager,
	 Bank of Ceylon,
	 (Medirigiriya).

27th April, 2018.

06-558

bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

Mortgaged Property at No. 102, Ralapanawa 
Janapadaya, Nochchiyagama for the liabilities of  
Mr. Heenkenda Mudalige Wickramapala and  
Mr. Heenkenda Mudalige Indika Sanath Wickramapala of 
No. 102, Ralapanawa Janapadaya, Nochchiyagama.
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at a meeting held on 20.02.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously:

1. That a sum of Rupees Two Million Two Hundred and 
Three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty-two and cents 
Forty-five (Rs. 2,203,752.45) on account of the principal 
and interest up to 18.01.2018 and together with further 
interest on Rupees Two Million (Rs. 2,000,000.00) at the 
rate of Sixteen decimal Five (16.5%) per centum per annum 
from 19.01.2018 till date of payment on Overdraft and a 
sum of Rupees Three Million Four Hundred and Twenty-
three Thousand One Hundred and Fifty-five and cents 
Fourteen (Rs. 3,423,155.14) on account of the principal and 
interest up to 18.01.2018 and together with further interest 
on Rupees Three Million One Hundred and Seventy-five 
Thousand (Rs. 3,175,000.00) at the rate of Twelve Point 
One Nine (12.19%) per centum per annum from 19.01.2018 
till date of payment on loan is due from Mr. Heenkenda 
Mudalige Wickramapala and Mr. Heenkenda Mudalige 
Indika Sanath Wickramapala on Mortgage Bond Nos. 1103 
dated 20th September, 2013 and 1924 dated 09th June, 2016 
all attested by D. U. Manodara, Notary Public. 

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of 
Ceylon Ordinance (Chapter 397) and its amendments,  
M/s Schokman and Samerawickreme, the Auctioneer of 
No. 290, Havelock Road, Colombo 05 be authorized and 
empowered to sell by public auction the property mortgaged 
to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the Schedules 
hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Two 
Million Two Hundred and Three Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Fifty-two and cents Forty-five (Rs. 2,203,752.45) on 
overdraft and Rupees Three Million Four Hundred and 
Twenty-three Thousand One Hundred and Fifty-five and 
cetns Fourteen (Rs. 3,423,155.14) on loan, due on the said 
Bond No. 1103 dated 20.09.2013 and Bond No. 1924 dated 
09.06.2016 and together with interest as aforesaid from 
19.01.2018 to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable 
under Section  26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance 
and the Manager of Nochchiyagama Branch of the Bank 
of Ceylon to publish notice of this resolution in terms of 
Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

      first SCHU

All that divided and defined an allotment of Land marked 
Lot 19 depicted in F. C. P. 150/1 authenticated by the 
Surveyor General of the Land called “State Land” situated 
at Meegahawewa Village in No. 339, Grama Niladhari 
Division in Wilachchiya Korale South within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits and the Divisional Secretary’s Division of 
Nochchiyagama in the District of Anuradhapura, North 
Central Province aforesaid and which said Lot No. 19 is 
bounded on the North by Lot No. 18, on the East by F. C. 
P. 151, on the South by Lot No. 20 and on the West by Lot  

No. 69 and containing in extent Nought decimal One 
Nine Seven Hectares (0.197 Hectares) together with trees, 
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon 
and Registered in L. D. O. M/9/30 at the District Land 
Registry, Anuradhapura.

Which said Land According to a Recent Survey Plan 
No. 6041 dated 07.07.2013 made by A. M. B. Rathnasiri, 
Licensed Surveyor is described as follows:

All that an allotment of Land marked Lot No. 1 depicted 
in Plan No. 6041 dated 07.07.2013 made by A. M. B. 
Rathnasiri, Licensed Surveyor of the Land called “Goda 
Idama” situated at Meegahawewa Village aforesaid and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot No. 18 in 
F. C. P. A. 150, on the East by F. C. P. A. 151 (Jala Marga 
Rakshithaya), on the South by Lot No. 20 in F. C. P. A. 
150 and on the West by Lot No. 69 in F. C. P. A. 150 and 
containing in extent One Rood and Thirty-seven decimal 
Nine Perches (0A., 1R., 37.9P.) or Nought decimal One Nine 
Seven Nought Hectares (0.1970 Hectares) together with 
trees, Plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon.

The Prior permission of the Residential Project Manager 
of Sri Lanka Mahaweli Authority to mortgage the Land for 
the Bank has been obtained by his letter dated 10.07.2013 
under his reference No. RPM/T/L/Loan/No/04 and 
11.02.2016 under his reference RPM/T/L/NOG/LDO/5-2-1. 

second schedule

Reservations:

01.	T he title to all minerals (which term shall in this 
grant include precious stone) in or upon the holding and the 
right to dig for, search for, work and carry away any such 
minerals are reserved to the state.

02. The owner’s title to the holding is subject to any right 
of way or other servitude existing over the holding at the 
date of this grant.

Conditions:

01. The owner shall not dispose of a divided portion 
of the holding less in extent than the unit of sub-division 
specified herein namely 0.101 hectares/acres highland ...... 
hectares/acres irrigate land.

02. The owner shall not dispose of an undivided share of 
the holding less than the minimum fraction specified herein, 
namely.

03.	 No person shall be the owner of a divided portion 
of the holding less in extent than the unit of sub-division 
specified in condition 1.
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04.	 No person shall be the owner of an undivided share 
of the holding less than the minimum fraction specified in 
condition 2.

05. If the holding or any part of it is irrigable or becomes 
irrigable hereafter by any irrigation work already constructed 
in the course of construction, or to be constructed hereafter, 
the owner shall comply, in respect of the irrigable area, with 
the provisions of the irrigation ordinance (chapter 453) and 
any rules framed there under.

06. The owner shall not dig or search for take, appropriate, 
sell or otherwise dispose of any minerals in or upon the 
land, unless he has obtained permission in writing from 
the Government Agent and a license from the appropriate 
authority.

07. No disposition of the holding or any portion thereof 
shall be made except with the prior permission in writing of 
the divisional Secretary.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 S. M. P. R. Semasinghe,
	 Manager,
	 Nochchiyagama.

Bank of Ceylon,
(Nochchiyagama),
27th April, 2018.

06-557

Sampath Bank PLC 
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and No. 19 of 2011

Oilta Virgin Oil.
A/C No. 0183 1000 0945.

At a meeting held on 26.04.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Sudasing Manchanayake Appuhamilage 
Gemunu Udaysiri being the sole proprietor of the business 
carried on in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka under the name and style of “Oilta Virgin Oil” 

as the obligor has made default in the repayment of the 
credit facility granted against the security of the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage 
Bond No. 2421 dated 02nd April, 2015 attested by  
K. A. D. Subasinghe of Negombo, Notary Public 
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office 
at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing on the said Bond No. 2421 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 15th March, 2018 
a sum of Rupees Twelve Million Three Hundred and 
Eighty-eight Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety-five 
and Cents Thirty-two only (Rs. 12,388,595/32) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC under the powers vested by the recovery 
of loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the properties and premises 
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facility by the said Bond No. 2421 to be sold in 
Public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed auctioneer of 
Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Twelve 
Million Three Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand Five 
Hundred and Ninety-five and cents Thrity-two only  
(Rs. 12,388,595.32) together with further interest on 
a sum of rupees Eleven Million Six Hundred and Fifty 
Thousand Only (Rs. 11,650,000) at the rate of Average 
Weighted deposit rate + Two decimal Five per centum 
(2.5%) per annum from 16th March 2018 to date of 
satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond 
bearing No. 2421 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The Schedule

All that allotment of land marked Lot 1 depicted in 
Plan No. 2497 dated 26th September, 2004 made by  
S. Senarath, Licensed Surveyor (being the resurvey of 
the land depicted in Plan No. 1011 dated 11th March 
1997 made by H. D. Rupasinghe, Licensed Surveyor) 
of land called “Thimbirigahawatta, Delgahawatta and 
Thalagahakumbura” together with the soil, trees, plantation, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon situated at 
Horakandavila village in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
No. 56C, Balawala within the Divisional Secretariat and 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Divulapitiya in the District of 
Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded 
on the North by Main Road and Pradeshiya Sabha Road on 
the East by Pradeshiya Sabha road on the South by Paddy 
Field claimed by Sekara Mudalali and land calimed by  
K. A. Karunawathie and on the West by land claimed by  
K. A. Karunawathie and Main Road and Containing in extent 
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One Rood and Twenty-four decimal One Perches (0A., 1R., 
24P.) according to the said Plan No. 2497 and registered in 
Volume/Folio E 1093/207 at the Land Registry Negombo. 
(in the remarks Column)

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

06-502

commercial  bank  of  ceylon  plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 

No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 

1990

Loan Account No. : 2005372.
Ponnaiah Gnananathan.

At a meeting held on 27th April, 2018 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:-

Whereas Ponnaiah Gnananathan  as the Obligor has 
made default in the payment due on Bond Nos. 21582 
dated 4th May 2016, 21780 dated 9th September, 2016 
and 21808 dated 10th October, 2016 all attested by  
M. C. J. Peeris, Notary Public of Bandarawela in 
favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there 
is now due and owing to the Commercial Bank of 
Ceylon PLC as at 12th March, 2018 a sum of Rupees 
Six Million Four Hundred and Fourteen Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Thirty-seven and cents Thirty Seven 
(Rs. 6,414,837.37) on the said Bonds and the Board of 
Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the 
powers vested by recovery of loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that 
the property and premises morefully described in the 
schedule hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank 
of Ceylon PLC by the said Bond Nos. 21582, 21780 and 
21808 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, 
Licensed Auctioneer of No. 369/1, Dutugemunu 
Mawatha, Lewella Road, Mawilmada, Kandy for the 
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Six Million Four 
Hundred and Fourteen Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Thirty Seven and Cents Thirty Seven (Rs. 6,414,837.37) 
with further interest on a sum of Rs. 5,833,315 at 12.50% 
per annum from 13th March 2018 to date of sale together 
with Costs of advertising and any other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

From and out of all that divided and defined portion 
of land called and  known as “ Dombagodelle Patana” 
situated at Kabillewela village of the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Kabillewela within the Urban Council Limits of 
Bandarawela now within the Municipal Council Limits of 
Bandarawela in Medikinda Mahapalatha Korale within the 
Divisional Secretary’s Division of Bandarawela in Badulla 
District of the Province of Uva and which said portion of land 
is depicted as Lot No. 45 in Plan No. 1147 dated 05.11.1972 
made by M. J. Sethunga, Licensed Surveyor and is bounded 
according to the said Plan on the North by Lot No. R4 in 
the said Plan on the East by Lot No. 46 on the South by Lot 
No. 10AL and on the West by Lot No. R1 & R3 and containing 
in extent within these boundaries Thirty Two Perches  
(0A., 0R., 32P.) together with everything else standing 
thereon and registered under J 75/129 at the Badulla district 
land registry.

All that defined portion of land called and known as 
“Dombagodelle Patana” situated at Kabillewela village 
of the Grama Niladhari division of Kabillewela within 
the Urban Council Limits of Bandarawela now within the 
Municipal Council Limits of Bandarawela in Medikinda 
Mahapalatha Korale within the Divisional Secretary’s 
Division of Bandarawela in Badulla district of the province 
of Uva and which said portion of land is depicted as Lot B in 
Plan No. 2284B dated 18.03.2016 made by D. Sudath Aruna 
Ranjana, Licensed Surveyor and is bounded according to 
the said Plan on the North by Lot A in this Plan on the East 
by Lot No. 46 in Plan No. 1147 dated 05.11.1972 made by 
M. J. Sethunga, Licensed Surveyor on the South by Lot  
No. 10AL and on the West by Lot R1 & R3 in Plan  
No. 1147 dated 05.11.1972 made by M. J. Sethunga, Licensed 
Surveyor and containing in extent within these boundaries 
Twenty-one Perches (0A., 0R., 21P.) or Nought decimal 
Nought Five Three One Hectares (0.053 Hec.) together with 
the building and everything else standing thereon.

Together with the Right to use in common, the right of 
way and other rights in along over under and above the 
following reservation for road;

All that defined and divided allotment of land marked Lot 
R1 (Reservation for Road 30 feet wide) in Plan No. 1147 dated 
05th November, 1972 made by M. J. Sethunga, Licensed 
Surveyor of land called and known as “Dombagodelle 
Patana” situated at Kabillewela Village of the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Kabillewela within the Urban Council 
Limits of Bandarawela now within the Municipal Council 
Limits of Bandarawela in Medikinda Mahapalatha Korale 
within the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Bandarawela 
in Badulla District of the province of Uva and which said 
Lot No. R1 is bounded on the North by Lot Nos. 1, 15, 16, 
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41, 42, R3 & 43 on the East by Lot Nos. 2 to 14, R2, 15, 
16 & 45 on the South by Road Acces & Kit 19R in Plan  
No. 340233 and on the West by Lot 10R in Plan  
No. 340233 and containing in extent within these boundaries 
One Acre and Twenty-two decimal Nought Five Perches 
(1A., 0R., 22.05P.) according to the aforesaid Plan No. 1147 
together with everything else standing thereon and registered 
under J 73/189 at the Badulla district land registry.

	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage, 
	 Company Secretary.

06-388

commercial bank of ceylon Plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of 

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 
1990

Loan Account No. : 2113178.
Roshan Hemantha Yahalakotuwa.
Dhanushka Nadeeshani Mataraarachchi.

At a meeting held on 27th April, 2018 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:-

Whereas Roshan Hemantha Yahalakotuwa and 
Dhanushka Nadeeshani Mataraarachchi as Obligor and 
Roshan Hemantha Yahalakotuwa  as the Mortgagor 
have made default in the payment due on Bond  
Nos. 1868 dated 25th July, 2016 attested by K. V. A. 
D. C. K. Vipulasena, Notary Public of Kandy and 3466 
dated 23rd May, 2017 attested by P. L. N. Jayasinghe 
(Attygalle), Notary Public of Nawalapitiya in favour of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is now due 
and owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  as at 
20th March, 2018 a sum of Rupees Seven Million Nine 
Hundred and Seventy-nine Thousand nine Hundred and 
Five and Cents Seventy-three (Rs. 7,979,905.73) on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Commercial 
Bank of Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
by the said Bond Nos. 1868 and 3466 be sold by Public 
Auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer 
of No. 369/1, Dutugemunu Mawatha, Lewella Road, 
Mawilmada, Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of 

Rupees Seven Million Nine Hundred and Seventy-nine 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Five and Cents Seventy-
Three (Rs. 7,979,905.73) with further interest on a sum 
of Rs. 7,198,500 at 16% per annum from 21st March, 
2018 to date of sale together with Costs of Advertising 
and any other charges incurred less payments (if any) 
since received.

the Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 05 depicted in Plan No. 10571 dated 11th October, 2015 
made by K.A. Amarathunga, Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of the land called Polwatte situated at Bawwagama 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of Nawalapitiya 
West-1088 within the Divisional Secretary’s Division of 
Pasbage Korale and within the Urban Council Limits of 
Nawalapitiya in Pasbage Korale of Udabulathgama in the 
District of Kandy Central Province and which said allotment 
of Land marked Lot 05 is bounded on North by Lots 2 & 4 in 
Plan No. 10571 and Lot 3 (12 feet wide road) and masonry 
drain, on the East by Wire fence separating lands belonging 
to P. V. Pushpananda and P. R. B. Dinesh Tharanga, on 
the South by Fence separating to land belonging to H. M. 
Dammika Malani and on the West by Fence separating to 
land belonging to M. H. Dammika Malani and containing in 
extent Thirty Six Decimal Five (0A., 0R., 36.50P.) together 
with the soil, trees, Plantation and everything standing 
thereon and registered in Volume/Folio A 98/29 at Gampola 
Land Registry.Together with the Right of Way on, over, 
above & along the Road marked as Lot 3 in the said Plan 
No. 10571.

	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage,
	 Company Secretary.

27th April, 2018

06-384

commercial bank of ceylon Plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of 

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 
1990

Loan Account No. : 1935410.
Piliduwa Bogahawattage Premawathi.
Dodam Godage Priyantha.

At a meeting held on 28th July, 2017 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:-
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Whereas Piliduwa Bogahawattage Premawathi and 
Dodam Godage Priyantha as Obligors and Piliduwa 
Bogahawattage Premawathi as the Mortgagor have 
made default in the payment due on Bond Nos. 2046 
dated 15th July, 2008, 4051 dated 1st June, 2012, 4590 
dated 17th June, 2013, 5050 dated 5th March, 2014 and 
5485 dated 14th November 2014 all attested by S.R. 
Wijesinghe, Notary Public of Ambalantota in favour of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is now due 
and owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  as at 
13th June, 2017 a sum of Rupees Ten Million Eighty-five 
Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-six and Cents Twelve  
(Rs. 10,085,186.12) on the said Bonds and the Board of 
Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the 
powers vested by Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the 
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon 
PLC by the said Bond Nos. 2046, 4051, 4590, 5050 and 
5485 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. . L. B. Senanayake, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Thrivanka and Senanayake, 
Auctioneers of No. 200, 2nd Floor, Hulftsdorp Street, 
Colombo 12 for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Ten 
Million Eighty-five Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-six 
and Cents Twelve (Rs. 10,085,186.12) with further interest 
on a sum of Rs. 9,350,000 at AWPLR + 2.5% (Present rate 
4.29%) per annum from 14th June, 2017 to date of sale 
together with Costs of Advertising and any other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

the Schedule

All allotment of State land situated in the village of Bata 
- Ata in Grama Niladhari Division of Bata - Ata (South) 
in the Divisional Secretariat Division of Ambalantota and 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Ambalatota in East Giruwa 
Pattu Hambantota District Southern Province and which 
said allotment of land is bounded, on the North by land 
claimed by W.A. Arnolis , on the East by a land claimed by 
R.P. Baby Hamy, on the South Udagama Lane and on the 
West by Lane containing in extent Three Roods (0A., 3R., 
0P.) together with the Plantations and everything standing 
thereon and registered in Ham/14/3012/97 under the land 
Development Ordinance in Land Registry in Hambantota.

The above land has been described in a recent Plan of 
survey as follows;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
1 depicted in Plan No. 3362 dated 12.05.2002 prepared by 
L.K. Gunasekara, Licensed Surveyor of the land situated in 
the Village of Bata - Ata in Grama Niladhari’s Division of 
Bata - Ata (South) in the Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Ambalantota and Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Ambalatota in 
East Giruwa Pattu Hambantota District Southern Province 

and which said Lot 1 is bounded, on the North by a land 
claimed by W.A. Arnolis , on the East by a land claimed by 
R.P. Baby Hamy, on the South by the Crown Land and on 
the West by a reservation for the Road containing in extent 
Three Roods (0A., 3R., 0P.) together with the Buildings, 
Plantations and everything standing thereon.

	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage,
	 Company Secretary.

08th August, 2017.

06-501

Seylan  Bank  PLC—batticaloa branch
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 

Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan 
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Account No. : 0730-33525880-001.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 
at a meeting held on 27.04.2018 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously.

“Whereas Thurairajah Surenthiran alias Thurairajah 
Surendren, carrying on business as a Proprietorship under 
the name style and firm of ‘Racsi Construction’ under 
Certificate of Business Registration No. PP/FN/A/RB/15 
of Batticaloa as “Obligor” has made default in payment 
due on Bond No. 920 dated 25th July, 2016 attested by  
N. Jeganathan, Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank 
PLC (Registered under No. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is now due and 
owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on account of Principal 
and Interest up to 06th September, 2017 a sum of  
Rs. 8,701,409.58 together with interest on  
Rs. 8,344,575.46 at the rate of 14.5% percent per annum 
from 07th September, 2017 in respect of the Equated 
Installment Loan facility on the said Bond and the Board 
of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 (as amended), do hereby resolve that 
the property morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond 
No. 920 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. Thusitha 
Karunarathne, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the 
said total sum of Rupees Eight Million Seven Hundred 
and one Thousand Four Hundred and Nine and Cents 
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Fifty-eight (Rs.8,701,409.58) together with interest as 
aforesaid from 07th September, 2017 up to date of the 
sale with cost of advertising, any other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.”

The First Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land called 
“Uppodai Valavu” Depicted as Lot No. 04 in Plan No. KK/
BT/2013/800E dated 05.06.2013 and 20.06.2013 drawn by 
K. Kamalanathan, Licensed Surveyor, bearing Assessment 
No. 38/12A & 38/12B situated at the Kuda Lane, in the 
Village of Sinna Uppodai, in Grama Niladhari Division 
178A Periya Uppodai, in ward No. 8, within the Municipal 
Council Limits of Batticaloa, in the Divisional Secretariat 
Munmunai North, in the District of Batticaloa, Eastern 
Province, containing in extent 0.0418 Hectares or Sixteen 
Decimal Five Two (16.52) Perches (0A., 0R., 16.52P.) 
bounded on the North-East by Lot No. 05 in the aforesaid 
Plan No.  KK/BT/2013/800E, on the South-East by Land of 
S Monoharan, on the South-West by 04 Meter wide Lane 
and on the North-West by 03 Meter wide Lane depicted as 
Lot No. 03 in the aforesaid Plan No. KK/BT/2013/800E, 
together with the right to egress and ingress by the said lane 
situated on the South-West and North-West and all the rights 
and everything therein cantained.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 Mrs. K. Hatch,
	H ead of Legal.
	
06-485

Seylan  Bank  PLC—kadawatha branch
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 

Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan 
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Account No. : 0280-012742266-001.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that 
at a meeting held on 27.04.2018 by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously.

“Whereas Pixar Holding (Pvt) Ltd a company duly 
incorporated in Sri Lanka under the Companies Act,  
No. 7 of 2007 bearing registration No. PV 117452 and 
having its registered office at Rajagiriya as “Obligor” 
has made default in payment due on Bond Nos. 1454 
and 1455dated 23.12.2016 both attested by K. D. T. 
K. Kaluarachchi, Notary Public in favour of Seylan 
Bank PLC (Company Registration No. PQ 9 under to 
the Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is now 
due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on account 
of Principal and Interest up to 19th December, 2017 a 
sum of Rupees Five Million Nine Hundred and Eighty 
Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-nine and Cents 
Thirty-one (Rs. 5,989,969.31) together with interest 
on Rupees Five Million Six Hundred and Thirty-six 
Thousand Three Hundred and Twenty-six and Cents 
Forty-four (Rs. 5,636.326.44) at the rate of Twenty 
Percent (20%) from December, 2017 in respect of Term 
Loan I on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond  
Nos. 1454 and 1455 be sold by Public Auction by  
Mr. Thusitha Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for 
recovery of the sum of Rupees Five Million Nine Hundred 
and Eighty-nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-nine 
and cents Thirty-one (Rs.5,989,969.31) together with 
interest as aforesaid from 20th December, 2017 up to 
date of the sale with cost of advertising, any other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.”

The First Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 22 depicted in Plan No. 4511 dated 19.03.2009 made 
by M.L.N. Perera, Licensed Surveyor  of the land called 
“Kuduwalawatta alias Koongahawatta” situated at Pita 
Kotte, within the Grama Niladhari Division of No. 522B 
Pitakotte West, in the Divisional Secretariat and Municipal 
Council limits of Sri Jayawadenapura Kotte, in Plalle 
Pattu of Salpiti Korale within the registration Division of 
Delkanda, in the district of Colombo, Western Province 
and which said Lot 22 is bounded on the North by Assmt.  
Nos. 25/1 and 33 (Epitamulla Road), on the East by Lot 23, 
on the South by Lot 7 and on the West by Lot 21 containing in 
extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) together with Buildings, 
Trees, Plantations and everything else standing thereon. 

The above land is a Re-survey of the Lot 22 in Plan  
No (CO.) 169 A

All that divided and defined an allotment of land 
marked Lot 22 depicted in Plan No. CO/169A dated 08th 
September, 1983 made by C. M. D. Abeygunawardene, 
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Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kudawalawatta 
“Kudawalawatta alias Koongahawatta” situated at Pita 
Kotte, aforesaid and which Lot 22 is bounded on the North 
by Epitamulla Road, on the East by Lot 23, on the South 
by Lot 7 and on the West by Lot 21 containing in extent 
Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) together with Buildings, trees, 
Plantations and everything else standing thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 Mrs. K. Hatch,
	H ead of Legal.
	
06-486

Seylan  Bank  PLC—katuneriya 
branch

(Registered under ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the recovery 

of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 4 of 1990

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the recovery 
of loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990 
that at a meeting held on 26.03.2018, by the Board of 
Directors of Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously.

Account No : 0550-34309237-001.

“Whereas Andra Hannedige Daya Nishanka and 
Weerakonda Achchige Catharin Fernando alias 
Weerakonda Arachchige Mariya Catherin Fernando 
both of Katuneriya as “Obligors” have made default 
in payment due on Bond Nos. 1351, 1352 and 1353 
dated 20.03.2014 and Bond Nos. 1773, 1774, 1775 
dated 28.11.2011 and Bond No. 1530 dated 16.07.2015 
attested by W. S. N. Fernando, Notary Public in favour of 
Seylan Bank PLC (Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according 
to the Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is now 
due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on account of 
principal and interest upto 24th November, 2017 a sum of  
Rs. 37,228,415.18 together with interest on said amount 
at the rate of Twenty-eight (28%) per annum from 25th 
November, 2017 in respect of Permanent over draft 
facility granted to him and a sum of Rs. 9,517,670.38 
together with interest on Rs. 9,048,000.00 at Nineteen 
Percent (19%) per annum from 25th November, 2017 in 
respect of term Loan facility granted to him on said Bonds 

and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the 
powers vested by the recovery of loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that 
the property and premises morefully described in the 
Schedules hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC 
by the said Bond Nos. 1351, 1352, 1353, 1773, 1774, 
1775, 1530 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. Thusitha 
Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Forty-six Million Seven Hundred 
and Forty-six Thousand Eighty-five and cents Fifty-six 
(Rs. 46,746,085.56) (Total outstanding of permanent 
over draft facility + term loan facility) together with 
interest as aforesaid with costs of advertising, any other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.”

The First Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 5272 dated 19.02.2014 made 
by A. A. Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Nugagahawatta” situated  at Thoduwawa South village in 
the Grama Niladhari’s Division No. 531/A, Thoduwawa 
North. Within the divisional secretariat division of 
Mahawewa and within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Nattandiya in Yatakalan Pattu of Pitigal Korale South 
within the Registration Division of Marawila in the District 
of Puttalam, North Western Province and which said Lot 
02 is bounded on the North by Road (PS), on the East by 
land claimed by W. A. Justin Fernando, on the South by land 
claimed by Calister Vanderland and on the West by Lot 01 on 
Plan No. 1217 dated 22.05.1996 made by A. A. Wimalasena, 
Licensed Surveyor and containing in extent Thirty decimal 
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 30.5P.) together with buildings trees 
and everything else standing thereon.

The above described land is being a re-survey of the 
below described land: 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 1217 dated 22.05.1996 made 
by A. A. Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Nugagahawatta” situated at Thoduwawa South aforesaid 
and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by road, 
on the East by land claimed by W. A. Justin Fernando, on 
the South by land claimed by Calister Vanderland, on the 
West by Lot 01 in the said plan and containing in extent 
Thirty decimal Five perches (0A., 0R., 30.5P.) together with 
buildings trees and everything else standing thereon and 
registered in volume/folio K 47/291 at the Land Registry, 
Marawila.

The Second Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 5273 dated 19.02.2014 made 
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by A. A. Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Thoduwawa Estate and Palugahahena” situated 
at Thoduwawa South village in the Grama Niladhari’ s 
Division No. 531/A, of Thoduwawa North, within the 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Mahawewa and within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Nattandiya in Yatakalan Pattu 
of Pitigal Korale South within the Registration Division 
of Marawila in the District of Puttalam, North Western 
Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North 
by land claimed by J. Aladin Appu, on the East by land of 
K. S. Mallika, on the South by road (PS) from Main Road 
to Houses, on the West by land claimed by N. W. P. Mary 
Margeret containing in extent Thirty-eight Decimal Five 
Perches (0A., 0R., 38.5P.) together with buildings, trees and 
everything else standing thereon and 

The above described land is being a re-survey of the 
below described land 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 2648 dated 21.01.1999 
made by M M P D Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Thoduwawa Estate and Palugahahena” situated at 
Thoduwawa South aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded 
on the North by Land of J A Aladin Appu, on the East by 
land of K. S. Mallika, on the South by road, on the West 
by land of N. W. P. Mary Margeret and containing extent 
Thirty Eight Decimal Five Perches (0A., 0R., 38.5P.) and 
together with buildings trees and everything else standing 
thereon and registered in volume/folio K55/284 at the Land 
Registry, Marawila.

The Third Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 5274 dated 19.02.2014 made 
by A A Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Palliyawatta” situated at Thoduwawa South village in the 
Grama Niladhari’s Division No. 531/B, Meda Thoduwawa. 
Within the Divisional Secretariat Division of Mahawewa 
and within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Nattandiya 
in Yatakalan Pattu of Pitigal Korale South within the 
Registration Division of Marawila in the District of Puttalam, 
North Western Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded 
on the North by Road (P S), on the East by Land claimed 
by Camilas Fernando, on the South by land claimed by  
W. R. N. Ranjith Fernando, on the West by road (highways) 
from Thalwila to Chilaw containing in extent Fourteen 
Decimal Five Two Perches (0A., 0R., 14.2P.) and together 
with buildings, trees and everything else standing thereon 
and, 

The above described land is being a re-survey of the 
below described land.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
01 depicted in Plan No. 2947 dated 02nd and 03rd March 
1998 made by R. F. H. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Palliyawatta” situated at Thoduwawa South 
aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North 
by V C Road, on the East by Land of Camilas Fernando, 
on the South by Lot 02 in the said Plan, on the West by 
Road (Highways) from Thalwila to Chilaw and containing 
in extent Fourteen Decimal Five Two Perches (0A., 0R., 
14.2P.) together with buildings, trees and everything else 
standing thereon and registered in volume/folio K93/235 at 
the Land Registry, Marawila.

The Fourth Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 10089 dated 12.06.2007 
made by S Iddamalgoda, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Hettiyawatta alias Dombagahawatta” situated at 
Henpita (Embulgama) in the Grama Niladhari’s Division of  
No. 451, Henpita within the Divisional Secretariat Division 
and the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Homagama in Meda 
Pattu of Hewagam Korale within the Registration Division 
of Homagama in the District of Colombo, Western Province 
and which said Lot 02 is bounded on the North by Lot 01 
in the said Plan and Road (Highways), on the East by Road 
(Highways) and Hettiyawatta alias Dombagahawatta South 
by Hettiyawatta alias Dombagahawatta, on the West by 
Godellawatta and Lot 01 in the said Plan and containing in 
extent Eighteen Perches (0A., 0R., 18P.) and together with 
buildings, trees and everything else standing thereon.

The above described land is being a re-survey of the 
below described land. 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 2995 dated 09.01.1989 made 
by S. Iddamalgoda, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Hettiyawatta alias Dombagahawatta” situated at Henpita 
(Embulgama) aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is bounded on 
the North by Lot 01 in the said Plan and Road (Highways), 
on the East Road (Highways) and Hettiyawatta alias 
Dombagahawatta, on the South by Hettiyawatta alias 
Dombagahawatta, on the West by Godellewatta and Lot 
1 in the said Plan containing in extent Eighteen Perches  
(0A., 0R., 18P.) and together with buildings trees and 
everything else standing thereon and registered in Volume/
Folio A 538/32 at the Land Registry, Homagama.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 Mrs. K. Hatch,
	H ead of Legal.

06-487
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